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2. Statement of Variance: progress against targets
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3. Evaluation and analysis of students’ progress and achievement
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FURTHER ANALYSIS OF RAW OTJ READING DATA IN RELATION TO PAT

READING COMP AND READING VOCAB

- Female Year 7 students who Need Support have decreased from 23% in Mid Year Data to 22%.

- Female Year 7 students who are Working Towards have decreased from 50% in Mid Year Data to
32%.

- Female Year 7 students who are At Expectation have increased from 25% in Mid Year Data to
32%.

- Female Year 7 students who are Above have increased from 2% in Mid Year Data to 14%.

- Male Year 7 students who Need Support have decreased from 45% in Mid Year Data to 36%.

- Male Year 7 students who are Working Towards remain unchanged at 38%.

- Male Year 7 students who are At Expectation has increased from 14% in Mid Year Data to 15%.

- Male Year 7 students who are Above has increased from 3% in Mid Year Data to 10%.

- Total number of Year 7s who are Above is 54, which is 12%. PAT indicates that 25% of Year 7
students are sitting between 4P to 5A. What is affecting the teacher’s willingness or ability to
recognise these students as Above?

- Total number of Year 7s who are At is 102, which is 23%. PAT indicates that 25% of Year 7.
students are sitting between 3A and 4P. This indicates that the Raw OTJ data here is accurate at
least in terms of the total percentage. But, perhaps not the individual student.

- Total number of Year 7s who are Working Towards is 155, which is 35%. PAT indicates that 25% of
Year 7 students are sitting between 3P and 3A. Again, this validates the OTJs that teachers are
making.

- Total number of Year 7s who Need Support is 128, which is 29%. PAT indicates that 25% of Year 7
students’ achievement is lower than 2B with a peak at 3P. Again, this validates the OTJs that
teachers are making.

- Female Year 8 students who Need Support have decreased from 22% in Mid Year Data to 17%.

- Female Year 8 students who are Working Towards have decreased from 47% in Mid Year Data to
38%.

- Female Year 8 students who are At Expectation have increased from 28% in Mid Year Data to
32%.

- Female Year 8 students who are Above have increased from 3% in Mid Year Data to 13%.

- Male Year 8 students who Need Support have decreased from 30% in Mid Year Data to 26%.

- Male Year 8 students who are Working Towards have decreased from 43% in Mid Year Data to
32%.

- Male Year 8 students who are At Expectation has increased from 23% in Mid Year Data to 28%.

- Male Year 8 students who are Above has increased from 4% in Mid Year Data to 13%.

- Total number of Year 8s who are Above is 60, which is 13%. PAT indicates that 25% of Year 8
students are sitting between 4P to 5A. Again, what is affecting the teacher’s willingness or ability
to recognise these students as Above?

- Total number of Year 8s who are At is 144, which is 30%. PAT indicates that 25% of Year 8.
students are sitting between 4B to 4P. This indicates that the Raw OTJ data here is accurate.

- Total number of Year 8s who are Working Towards is 168, which is 35%. PAT indicates that 25% of
Year 8 students are sitting between 3P and 4B. How many of these students could potentially be
considered At Expectation? This is an example of the conservative element to our teacher OTJs
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that | describe in the introduction to the report. Unlike the previous report | wrote, | feel | am getting
closer to exactly which kids could be moved to have a more representative OTJ figure.

Total number of Year 8s who Need Support is 104, which is 21%. PAT indicates that 25% of Year 8
students’ achievement is lower than 2B with a peak at 3P. Again, this validates the OTJs that
teachers are making.

| have explored how to also use E-asTTle data to analyse the accuracy of teacher OTJs. Butlam
less familiar with the E-asTTle system and | haven’t yet found an efficient way to pull data from
that system in the way that | can from NZCER Assist. It is also not particularly easy to get total
numbers of students that have set a particular test like you can from NZCER Assist. Using
E-asTTle data to check the validity of OTJs or measure achievement will be an objective to
achieve over the longer term.

| still feel that there is evidence that we need to extend some of our average to higher achieving
students in Humanities. However, | feel that lack of clear interpretations of assessment data may
have been a limiting factor in this area. | also have concerns about the way PATs are administered
and | think that this may affect the results. One: do we really need to do the Punctuation and
Grammar test? The Scale Scores for this test do not relate to a curriculum level like Reading
Comprehension and Reading Vocab. Two: it is one more test in an already tight PAT assessment
schedule. | also feel that we need to be more prescriptive about the order teachers take the PATs
in. Reading Comprehension arguably will have the highest cognitive load for students: should it
not be sat first?

| also feel that using the E-asTTle writing rubric will give teachers an accurate picture of what are
appropriate punctuation and grammar next steps for a student.
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ANALYSIS OF RAW OTJ WRITING DATA

Female Year 7 students who Need Support have decreased from 24% in Mid Year Data to 20%.
Female Year 7 students who are Working Towards have decreased from 55% in Mid Year Data to
39%.

Female Year 7 students who are At Expectation have increased from 19% in Mid Year Data to
34%.

Female Year 7 students who are Above have increased from 2% in Mid Year Data to 6%.

Male Year 7 students who Need Support have decreased from 48% in Mid Year Data to 38%.
Male Year 7 students who are Working Towards have decreased from 40% in Mid Year Data to
37%.

Male Year 7 students who are At Expectation has increased from 11% in Mid Year Data to 20%.
Male Year 7 students who are Above have increased from 1% in Mid Year Data to 5%.

Female Year 8 students who Need Support have decreased from 20% in Mid Year Data to 17%.
Female Year 8 students who are Working Towards have decreased from 54% in Mid Year Data to
41%.

Female Year 8 students who are At Expectation have increased from 24% in Mid Year Data to
33%.

Female Year 8 students who are Above have increased from 2% in Mid Year Data to 9%.

Male Year 8 students who Need Support have decreased from 33% in Mid Year Data to 28%.
Male Year 8 students who are Working Towards have decreased from 49% in Mid Year Data to
40%.

Male Year 8 students who are At Expectation has increased from 16% in Mid Year Data to 25%.
Male Year 8 students who are Above have increased from 2% in Mid Year Data to 7%.

| am looking forward to seeing what effect moving away from using PaCT as primary means of
assessing student writing levels to E-asTTle has on OTJ data. | am hoping that by giving teachers
both a better understanding of robust moderation practices as well as using a, frankly, more logical
assessment tool will improve the ‘spread’ of our results. For example, | would like to see greater
numbers in the At Expecatation and Above categories. Not simply for the sake of making the
numbers look better, but having greater numbers in these categories would be an indication that
teachers have a more accurate picture of student ability in this school.

| also feel that the use of E-asTTle will give students a better understanding of what their next
steps should be in writing. This in turn (hopefully) will have a positive effect on their results.

Over the longer term | would like to make sure | understand how | can make teacher tracking in
Humanities consistent enough to easily pull E-asTTle data from to accurately measure progress. |
am not saying that | believe that the tracking in Humanities is inconsistent: but | am simply stating
this is an area | would like to explore. | would like to offer as detailed a picture of student
achievement and progress as | feel that | can with the other two core subject areas and | feel
investigating this area will help me understand how | can do this for writing.



























in and outside of the classroom.

Wifi and network: Issues with connectivity are
still apparent every now and then, but only in
certain places of the school. We had a meeting
with N4L around their lack of communication to
support our situation. | am hopeful this will not
continue to be an issue.

Printers: Have continued to have their ups and
downs this year. Toshiba have been in a few
times this year to fix, upgrade and clean our
printers. Unfortunately, we have had to follow up
with Toshiba more than we would have liked
due to this.

Sound systems: A bit of a tidy up has
happened in the Hall, where we now have a box
to hold all the wires/receivers for the
microphones etc. Only the IT Technician and
Leadership have a key for this cabinet, which
has meant there have been no issues in this
area since we have tidied it up. However, it has
interfered with some of the radio signals
connecting the microphones. We are monitoring
this at present.

One of the speakers in the Hall has also blown
a fuse (right speaker, if you are facing the
stage). They are now 8 years old. We have had
the speaker sent away but the module amp
needed is hard to come by (not being made
anymore) so we will continue to use this sound
system until it can’t be used anymore.

Cameras and Speakers: Cameras come in
handy when we need to check on something.
Davi is always very diligent when he is asked to
check footage. Speakers on the other hand
have had a few faults and a couple stolen over
the year. Davi ensures these are sent back to
the supplier and fixed as soon as possible.
Hardware: This includes 7 new POE switches
which were replaced due to the storm we had at
the beginning of the vyear. These are
cloud-based management systems and will
potentially need to be upgraded in 2025.

Ensure the upkeep and maintenance of ICT
consumables within our school are accounted for
in an ongoing way and checked yearly

- Testand Tag

- Cables

- Machines/Appliances

Term 3 is when our IT Technician tests and tags
all our appliances in our school. A huge job as
we have over 1,400 devices, and that's only
laptops, computers and TVs. This doesn't
include the machines and appliances (cameras,
phones, bell and printers) we have also.

Staff have been better at looking after such
resources. However, there have been a few
replacements of items such as HDMI cables
and locks on laptop cabinet doors.

Hapara, Google, Microsoft Licenses and Software
are kept up to date for staff and students

Our IT Technician ensures our licenses are kept
up to date each year




In 2022, we had 1024 current licenses which
covered all our staff and students. This year,
with a growing roli of 930+ students, we have
had to upgrade the amount of licenses to cater
to this. We now have 1250 licences to cater to
staff and students.

We continue to communicate with Microsoft to
install a dual Google and Microsoft package
which helps with all devices to distribute apps
etc and control our digital environment.

Hapara is a third-party software, which is no
longer supported by Google. This means we
must deploy the software to match our systems.
It would be good to further our skills in Hapara
in the future, to see what else this software has
on offer and how it can support student learning
in classes

Major area of review for 2023 includes Digital
Infrastructure - looking specifically at the use of
digital devices in class to support students
learning

Digital Infrastructure is under review this year,
where we will look into the use of digital devices
specifically examining how our devices are
utilised in classrooms to support student
learning.

This presents an opportunity to assess and
refine current practices that are in place and
therefore find next steps for our new DP
portfolio - e-Learning and Infrastructure.

The emphasis for this self-review is about
optimising the use of digital tools to align with
the learning intentions across Math, Humanities
and Form Time subjects (for starters),
enhancing the overall learning experience for
our students.

This review is also about ensuring that the
technological integration and use of devices is
purposeful and contributes meaningfully to their
learning, not just being a substitution for a
worksheet.

DISCOVERY PROGRAMMES

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Ensure Options retains its rigour as an extension
of the curriculum. STEAM based as well as GnT
Options.

Many opportunities for students to explore
new and demonstrate current talents in
options such as: GnT Math, Art Design,
Whakorero, Poi Making etc. However, some
areas have ventured away to specific STEAM
structure where we saw a need

All teacher choices for the options they will
offer are reviewed by the leadership team,
ensuring that high-quality options lessons are
available to students. This process helps
maintain a standard of excellence and aligns
with the overall goals and objectives.




Teachers
template/expectation
thoughtful planning.

use a shared planning
to ensure high quality,

e All planning is linked into a shared docum;lﬂ
for review and feedback, addressing any
necessary adjustments. Some teachers have
received light support concerning their
planning and implementation, but this has
been targeted to very specific areas.

Increase the emphasis of the “create”/"share” for
each Option. Develop and provide more
opportunities for students to perform and share
what they have learnt/practiced in Options.

e There's room for improvement in this aspect.
While work is typically showcased in
classrooms, we can explore additional
avenues for sharing work and performances,
such as utilising platforms like Facebook,
instagram, or organizing a dedicated
"Gelebration of Learning"” event

Form teachers must dedicate time to ensuring their
students choose the Option that is right for them.
Use of an explanatory slideshow that helps
students choose their Option could help form
teachers do this.

e \We have a well-designed selection process in
place. Students are initially presented with
various activity options, from which they
choose their top 4 preferences. Their form
teacher compiles and adds these choices to
a document, and students are then assigned
to activities accordingly.

E - LEARNING

OBJECTIVES

—

ANALYSIS

Ensure new staff induction includes helpful
information on E-Learning

Consider incorporating this into the 2024 Staff
Induction for better integration. The Deputy
Principal (PLL) should ensure there is a scheduled
session where an "expert" or "experts" share how
they effectively use devices to support learning in
their classes.

Ensure devices in class are being used effectively
using the SAMR model and not just as a substitute
for pen and paper.

This is the ongoing dilemma for teachers. Research
is suggesting there needs to be more of a balance
with the use of devices versus traditional methods.

Provide opportunities for PD for staff to support
their use of devices in the classroom.
- Staff experts

We need to be utlising more ‘experts’ who can
share with other staff members. UTB is now
finished so most staff feel upskilled to a certain
extent on the use of devices in class to support
students' learning. However, we would look at
getting more teachers to present to teachers at the
beginning of a staff meeting, for example.

Major area of review for 2023 includes E-Learning -
looking specifically at the use of digital devices in
class to support students learning

Please see digital infrastructure analysis

J




ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

To implement an engaging and rich programme to
better equip our students with the knowledge, skills
and motivation to tackle environmental issues.

Nature Club Period 6: This is run 3 days a week
and is open to the whole school. However, only the
keen students who don’t need chasing are kept on
the roll. That been said, there is a group of
approximately 40-50 students who attend.

Eco Apprentices: This is an opportunity to extend
the really keen students and provide them with
routine training to upskill them as Eco Leaders.
From this pool of students it will help with Eco
Council selection for next year.

We conduct regular field trips to the Puhinui
Reserve, Recycling Centre, and throughout the
broader Manurewa Community. We've also had a
fantastic day at Tiritiri Matangi with Department of
Conservation (DoC) Rangers. Plans for Botanical
gardens are underway as well as more, in-depth
visits to Puhinui Reserve.

To engage in problem solving, and take action to
improve outcomes for the natural environment.

Reinforcing the Design Process as taught by our
current Sustainable Enterprise teacher. Our
Enviromental Education teacher supports in this
space by focussing on the testing and modifying
aspect to allow the concept to really sink in for the
students.

Greenhouse renovations have become a reality
thanks to South Science funding us $20,000,
enabling us to collaborate closely with our students
to enhance our greenhouse. The key purpose of
this funding is to actively engage the students in the
renovation process.

To increase the biodiversity (plants, fungi, birds,
reptiles and invertebrates) in the school
environment.

So far we have seen the introduction of pure bred
silkie chickens, Japanese quails as well as
expanding on the range of vegetable and native
plant species in the school. With more plant
diversity, more habitat and ideal conditions are
created for a broader range of species. Rat
trapping will also support the native wildlife with
breeding and feeling secure on our school grounds.
We recently planted both a Rimu and Tawa tree
alongside our outdoor classroom.

Learn to build soil and maintain organic recycling
systems conserving natural resources and diverting
food waste from the landfill.

Fruit kitchen: All wasted fruit and separation
cardboard is put through our compost system.
Admin Office: Shredded paper is saved for the
compost

Sustainable Enterprise Students: Throughout
the year, students have actively participated in
various aspects of composting. They've been
involved in tasks such as turning soil, removing
plastic waste from the soil, layering brown and




green waste, transferring soil into gardens, and
adding materials like coffee grounds, 'hlood and
bone,’ and water to enrich the compost and
facilitate its ongoing growth.

Class Services: Room 14 were involved in
shredding cardboard for the compost as part of
their service earlier in the year.

To empower students as kaitiaki to drive and lead
environmental projects in the school environment.

Eco Council is increasingly taking on more and
more responsibilities. They've been conducting
tasks like random bin checks, organizing waste
workshops for classes that need help with proper
bin sorting, ensuring all classes have clear bin
labels, improving the eco-friendliness and
efficiency of our lunch system, overseeing and
mentoring  Eco-Apprentices, and recognising
outstanding contributions on a weekly basis during
assembly through the Sustainability Shield awards!
Eco Apprentices provides a way to train and
observe future Eco Councillors and Eco leaders.

E4S

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Develop and maintain a programme that accurately
supports the students learning and understanding
of sustainability from a personal (wellbeing),
whanau, cultural, societal and ecological
perspective (local to global) Emphasis to be put on
the Eco Council and Eco Ambassadors getting
more involved in school-wide initiatives.

Our Environmental Teacher is a reflective and
proactive practitioner. All learning activities students
are involved in are designed around empowering
their abilites and knowledge to be effective
Eco-conscious people.

Responsibilities within our program are incredibly
diverse, offering numerous opportunities for
students to take on various roles. These roles
encompass tasks like animal feeding and care,
tending to the garden by both maintaining and
creating new areas, administrative duties such as
designing data collection sheets and collecting
data, servicing our rat trapline, nurturing seedlings,
cleaning, organizing equipment, and even
contributing to educational displays and designing
informative signs, among many other tasks.

The Eco Council is increasingly involved in wider
school life i.e. recently supporting the lunch crew
and all classes to produce less waste, policing the
bins and supporting students to use the correct bin
and mentoring the next, promising group of Eco
Councilors.

Refine the programme of withdrawing students
from Sustainable Enterprise to participate and be
involved in the maintaining of the school
sustainable learning spaces with the Environmental
Education teacher,

Students are taken out of class in small groups of
approx 5-10 (depending on the work they're doing).
These students receive the same information
presented in the Sustainable Enterprise class
through working closely with the Environmental




Education teacher on Eco projects around the
school. Every student has the chance to engage in
outdoor learning experiences at least a couple of
times each term. Additionally, for those who seek to
take on leadership roles, opportunities are available
to enhance their skills and guide other students in
this outdoor learning journey.

Provide authentic learning opportunities for a wider
range of students around sustainability by
including practical opportunities to interact with
genuine experiences.

Practical Opportunities provided have ranged from,
creating a native plant garden, establishing and
maintaining a rat trap line, participating in the South
Auckland Moth Piant Competition, field trips to
Tiritiri Matangi lsland, Puhinui Reserve (Adopt a
Park Programme run by Auckland Council),
Manurewa Community Recycling Centre (Run by
Beautification Trust), in-school waste audits,,
raising chickens from eggs, providing enrichment
for our animals, caring for our animals, maintaining
gardens for vegetables, flowers, pruning and
feeding our fruit trees, designing posters, coastal
monitoring at a local beach and visiting the
Auckland Botanical Gardens to learn about
weaving and tikanga surround harakeke.

Develop students’ understanding of their impact on
the world (positive, negative or neutral), and how to
sustain their personal wellbeing and create a more
sustainable culture in their everyday lives.

This is interwoven into everything | do. Involving
students in the Nature Club is the most effective
way to achieve these goals. Personal well-being
being linked to Nature is possible because the
students are immersed in a range of
environmental contexts to problem solve and
enjoy. I've observed many students come out of
their shells and find their confidence and
enjoyment in  learning because of their
involvement in Nature Club!

FRIDAY FRENZY

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Learning AssistantNGUAGES

This was introduced in 2022 as a form time module
to support teachers with resources to help deliver
quality programmes in languages other than
English. For 2023 the focus will continue to be on
Te Reo Maori through different context eg. School
Haka/ Greetings/Tikanga.

Once again this was done with varying degrees of
success, and based on the individual's confidence in
this area as well. This sat alongside the Te Reo PD
given at the start of every staff meeting which
supported teachers with what they could
teach/expose their students to each week. School
Haka competition rounded the term off which was a
great way to show pride and value in Te Reo across
the school. Still have this wondering, because
Languages is only done once a year in Module 3 itis
very difficult to gain traction with the other language
focus MI has. What other ways can languages
happen throughout the year where teachers learn
and can in turn teach their students?

B




FOUNDATION BASICS

Support Form Teachers in identifying students
gaps in basic competencies and then provide a
support programme that meets these needs across
a number of weeks and curriculum areas.

This year teachers were told to specifically focus on
Punctuation and Grammar as a result of the low
results we saw in the students'  PAT
PunctuationtGrammar  test. Teachers  were
encouraged to go back to didactic teaching and
teach basic skills the students need in order to make
their writing make sense. Several teachers took the
opportunity to share valuable resources related to
the Punctuation+Grammar.

CAREERS (2024)

To support students in engaging in careers
education, through meaningful, practical activities
to provide an initial understanding of career
pathways based on education choices.

2024 Form Time Module

This will happen in Module 8 2024

MEDIA STUDIES

Develop an understanding of how the media
influences society and young people both
positively and negatively and how students can
monitor the media's influence on themselves. To
engage students in developing awareness and
skills in being able to deal with growing in a
digitally complex world. For 2023 the focus will
specifically be on Cyber Safety. Students will be
engaged through an online programme called “‘Our
Kids Online”.

The Our Kids Online programme was engaging and
easy to follow. The handbooks prepared made it
simple to teach. The videos were relatable for
students and good class discussion stemmed from it.

Teachers did need to be careful about content
selection for their class as some classes may or may
not be ready for some of the discussions. The
booklet and teaching material appeared to be most
effectively utilised when selected based on the
needs of the class rather than taught as a sequence.

GEOGRAPHY (2024)

Students will learn about different places, the
continents and countries as well as the oceans,
rivers, deserts or mountains on our planet. Expand
students knowledge of the world and its history as
well as develop student skills with reading a variety
of texts in this subject area, e.g. map reading,
ability to interpret a key/legend, understanding of
scale, etc

2024 Formtime Module

This will happen in Module 8 2024

GLOBAL DISCOVERIES

Students will look at facts about natural
environments and landforms and will discuss how
people live in different parts of the world, and
challenges such as the effects that pollution,
natural disasters, wars and conflict have on the
people around the world and we will learn how to
protect our environment so we can help to
preserve the earth for future generations.and learn
about what makes our planet liveable.

This unit will be taught in Term 4 of 2023

This is another Form Time unit where more of an
inquiry focus could be brought in to allow for more
differentiation based on student interest. It will be
interesting to see how teacher planning manages to
encompass such a broad topic. Teachers have
mentioned that simply having the broad aims of the
unit established as whanau and then being left to
plan their own material, adapted to their own class
would allow them to follow student interest more.




GIFTED AND TALENTED

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

The GnT team will ensure that opportunities are
made available to students across all curriculum
and extra curricular areas. Maintaining a high level
of efficacy around accelerated learning and
performance.

The opportunities available to all curriculum areas
have been quite comprehensive this year. Literacy
has had Rehu Tai, a School wide Spelling Bee and
a school wide Narrative Writing competition to
allow students to extend themselves. Math has had
three Math competitions; South Auckland
Manurewa Mathex, the internal school wide
Mathex and the Auckland Mathex. Sports has had
the Sports Enrichment classes participating and
attending most sporting events available to them
and their unique programme with a sports focus
has been extremely beneficial to their confidence,
attendance and academic progress. Dance has
had the high achieving and competitive 728 Dance
crew run by our talented Dance teacher. Music
enthusiasts have several opportunities to explore
their passion through our Enrichment bands and
instrument lessons, open to dedicated and
committed students.

Our work on is to extend these opportunities in a
Science direction, which appears to be the major
curriculum area missed out.

Ensure teachers have input and value the systems
we have in place to identify GnT students who
demonstrate GnT through indicators based on
evidence.

All GnT representatives dicuss in their Passion
Pod as to how we cater for the GnT students
across the whole school. Additionally, GnT
opportunities are spaced throughout the year to
ensure that students who are identified later are
still able to participate in these activities.

To ensure students who are identified as GnT
and/or higher ability are catered across the
curriculum. Evidence of this should be in teachers’
planning.

Numerous discussions in Passion Pods to cover all
curriculum areas and discuss/share how we cater
for these groups. Professional Development was
provided to ensure that teachers understood the
different forms of differentiation.

To ensure teachers are given opportunities to
upskill in their practice re Gifted and
Talented/Higher Ability students

Staff PD on differentiation (content, process,
product and environment) and GnT focus group
regularly leads discussions in their respective
Passion Pods to identify and share various

‘keen’ sportsperson).

methods for differentiation catered to higher
learners

SPORTS ENRICHMENT

Students are highly performing athletes (not just a | Since the very start of the year, this was

emphasised during their trials. Throughout the
year, the expectation of their high performance for
both games and training was reiterated.




Each term, beginning and end, they are all
required to test their progressive level of fitness in
the beep test. They are also reminded of their
individual contracts which were signed by them
and their parents.

MENTORS: Students show leadership and help to
build student confidence in sports programmes at
school.

School Rec sets up all students in the sports class
to host/lead a game with an adult.

All students in the enrichment class get to referee
lunchtime sports that occur during both morning
tea and lunch on Wednesdays and Thursdays
throughout the year.

Students fully commit to any sports teams they are
involved in.

Students receive consistent reminders about the
significance of commitment, and they are also
made aware of their individual contracts, which
were signed by both the students and their
parents. This helps reinforce the importance of
their commitment.

Students maintain a high level of school attendance
(94%).

This is maintained through the contract. Both
Sports Focus classes keep in regular contact with
parents to keep them in the loop with this. Related
to attendance is the fact that if students do drop
below, other factors come into play with regard to
other privileges being withdrawn like taking part in
sports teams. Students are reminded that
attendance and academics will always come first.

Students attend homework club once a week.

This is compulsory with all students in class and is
built in with their contracts. Parents are told at the
beginning of year meeting that this is also
non-negotiable. Homework Club programme
content is academically driven, with either
sports-related content or other academic topics.

BANDS

To develop students’ musical ability by rehearsing,
listening, writing and performing as a part of a
group being led by top and appropriate coaches

This has taken place across a range of levels in
2023. We have seen the biggest gap in ability for
those who are in the GnT bands with some
students really needing proper coaching on just
how to properly play the instrument. This can only
be put down to the impact of COVID lockdowns
and the music opportunities the students weren't
exposed to. However, it has not been a barrier to
maintaining three bands for GnT students

To develop students’ individual musicianship skills
within a group by using and maintaining equipment
that is befitting and fit for purpose

Initially, we begin by assessing each student's
individual musical abilities as a whole class as well
as their interests and skill levels to understand
where theyre at. We use the instruments in
curriculum music to conduct group music lessons
where students can learn and practice together.
However, we have also provided individualised




attention and feedback to each student to address
their areas for development.

To ensure ALL bands are given the opportunity of
regular and meaningful performance opportunities
as well as enter competitions to showcase their
talent.

We had three bands take part in the 2023
BandQuest. This is the 12th year we have entered
this competition. Students also dovetailed into
taking part in school singing as well as leading
waiata in school assemblies.

To continue to promote and enhance our GnT
Bands into holistic, well-rounded performers,
ensuring the quality of the WHOLE performance is
of a high standard.

Students are taught how to perform as a group
touching on group performance techniques that
feature in Level One NCEA Music. The growth the
students make during the year is significant and
measurable.

G AND T GROUPS

To give opportunities for our students to participate
in activities that showcase their talent including
competitions and exhibitions. €.9. Passion Pursuits
glite performance groups, GnT Bands and
Performance Groups etc.

728 Dance Crew - Dance competitions
G & T Bands - Band Quest
Sports Enrichment Class - Participate in
sports games/competitions

e Nature club - Participate in a variety of
community initiatives

e Chess club - Participate in various chess
competitions

e Mathex team - Compete in Manurewa and
Auckland Mathex competition

e Rehu Tai finalists - Compete in Manurewa
Rehu Tai speech competition

e Fashion show entry (wearable arts)
e Esports
e Rewa’s got Talent
e Cutlural Night performances
e UN Show performances
To provide more explicit opportunities to cater for | e Master Chef
Higher Ability students through various activities | 728 including the performance at the Dew
eg. cooking, Performing Arts, Dance, Music, Drop Centre and achieving silver at the AlMs
Academic, Leadership etc such as been done in games
the speech, spelling and math competitions e Enrichment Bands and Band Quest
e Leadership Camp
e Whanau leader’s Camp
e Variety of councils Councils
To continue to develop our winning Hip Hop team - | e Team achieved Silver at AIMs games
708’s’. Ensure they are given the opportunity of | e Performance for express at the Dew Drop
regular and meaningful performance opportunities centre, showcase called express yourself.
as well as enter competitions to showcase their | o Also going to Sylvia Park School to
talent. performance and showcase.
To continue to develop our Cultural talent - e.g. | Performance at Erin Park
TMKR. Ensure they are given regular and | e School assembly
meaningful performance opportunities as well as | o Cultural night
enter competitions (where appropriate). e Period 6's

Establish and maintain the whole school
programme MindPlus in conjunction with Charlotte

The MindPlus programme was cancelled before
the beginning of the year as the partnership witlj




Davis and the MindPlus team. This programme
should support identifying and catering for gifted
andtalented students in all curriculum areas.

the company broke down. The programme was
modified and the RTLB were engaged to support
with running the GnT withdrawal programme. It
was highly successful and the students surveyed
were incredibly positively. The programme stopped
after Term Two as the teacher running it left,
however, there is a modified version being run in
2024 led by members of the Leadership team.

Establish and maintain the enrichment programme
developed for the academic enrichment class
through MindPlus and the Form Teacher Charlotte
Davis. This programme should support enriched
learning through Form Time.

This programme didn't run as the MindPlus
partnership did not eventuate. The differentiated
programme led by the line of teachers for the
academic enrichment class was maintained for this
year. It has proven to be successful and this
objective will not be pursued in 2024.

GUIDANCE AND SUPPORT

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Learning Support Coordinator

To ensure all students with moderate to high
learning needs receive the appropriate support to
enhance their learning and progress

Students of concern are discussed during our G & S
meetings which are held on Mondays. Thereafter,
these students are Snapshot - data analysed. A line
of discussion with all teachers concerned is held with
an agreed plan of action put in place. Having a
shared understanding of how the child can be
supported holistically promotes engagement and
progress in all learning areas. Collecting Student
voices helps with planning for their individual
learning styles. Specific resources are created to
help to enhance the learning to ensure that the
learning goals are met. Regular follow ups with
students and teachers helps to monitor the progress
within the student and if there are needs to modify
the programme or resources.

To continue to support parents and whanau to
partner successfully with their school and develop
an understanding of learning support processes

This is work in progress as | am continuously trying
to build positive relationships with all students’
whanau. Home school partnership is an important
element so that whanau have the necessary tools
and strategies to support their child at home. We
look forward to strengthening this process in 2024.

To support staff in schools to lift their capability to
better meet the needs of learners

Term Two data collected has proven that showing
rather than telling has been successful. When
resources have been created to meet the student’s
specific learning needs, | have gone into classrooms
and worked with the students while the teacher
observes. To build their capability and upskill
themselves thereafter | coteach with these teachers.
Sunshine Online and EPIC are online resources that
teachers are using for their low achievers and high
achievers. Support with administering and




anaylysing Probe data has helped build some
teacher’s confidence with this assessment tool.

To upskill and support the new LSC to perform
their role successfully.

DP: GnS has taken me through the Guidance &
Support systems and processes which helped me
transition into this role without hiccups. He is always
open for discussions and provides constructive
feedback and feedforward that helps build my
capabilities and growth as an LSC. | appreciate how
gradually he assigned tasks to me to be more
productive in my role.

ESOL

To ensure the ESOL programme targets students
needs and the students involved in the
programme are engaged and motivated.

Each lesson that students attend are targeted at
front loading students with content covered in their
core subjects, mostly humanities. Because our
numbers are low we are able to present learning
opportunities in a fun and engaging way.

Breakout lessons include:

‘Pizza and poetry’

‘Procedural writing, how to make a.......
‘Persuasive writing, Why my smoothie is the best’

To provide support and communication around
how ESOL students can be supported in class to
enable access to the curriculum

Our team are in constant communication with the
formtime and humanities teachers. Together we
identify strengths and work-ons of our ESOL
students and devise ways to support their learning.
During various weeks in ESOL this may include,
working on their speeches, brainstorming or working
on adjectives to enhance their learning and
understanding.

To provide information that can support the ESOL
learners through reflection and analysis.

Reflection and modelling is something we do very
well here in ESOL. Scaffolding by way of modelling
expectations of behaviour and learning outcomes
has proven a success as students strive to duplicate
those behaviours. Probes are done 3 times a year.
Feedback is provided in student books to add value
to their own personal reflections of their work and
also as a way to validate their efforts.

To upskill and support the new ESOL Teacher to
perform their role successfully.

We are an open and honest team here in ESOL. Our
lessons are reflected upon daily in professional yet
informal conversations. When we have a suggestion
on how to improve upon our lesson that week, we
jump on that boat immediately and try it out.

ESOL cluster meetings are happening soon, so that
should be interesting to see what others out there
are doing.

The LSC provides many opportunities for us to
implement new skills and programs to help our
programme E.g. Reciprocol reading observations
with RTLB, learning village with various students.




Learning Assistants

To support students learning through careful
placement in classes based on the effective use of
Learning Assistant Action Plans / LSDM / and TAl

This has been very successful and the student's
needs appear to have been well addressed when
specifically identified. There was less specific
intervention with programmes than anticipated,
however, it does appear to have been the
appropriate amount.

To ensure funded students get their allocation of
Learning Assistant support

This process continues to be robust and the DP:
GnS has multiple systems in place to ensure this is
done correctly. All interventions are incorporated and
included in that allocation provided they are
intervention programmes such as High Fliers: Quick
60 and High Fliers: Numicon.

To provide opportunities for Learning Assistants to
be upskilled in Learning Interventions eg. AWS,
Spring into Math etc.

This has been partially successful and has been
enabled through project referrals via the RTLB. It
would be beneficial to include more holistic upskilling
as this has been successful in the past, despite it
being quite expensive. We have had a number of
new hires this year so it does seem timely.

High Fliers

To ensure this learning intervention has value
added for the students involved

Testing has shown that students as a whole have
improved in their literacy levels. This is a testament
to the work that the Learning Assistant leading this
programme has done. He is incredibly passionate
and proactive.

To upskill the Learning Assistant’s in the effective
delivery of this programme.

Support from the LSC has meant the Learning
Assistant is now been upskilled enough to be
completely independent and he no longer requires
week to week observation.

In-Class Interventions

Students are assigned Learning Assistants based
on identified needs and appropriate interventions
are to take place within the class.

Learning Assistants are assigned depending on the
needs of the students with positive relationships
being the most important factor. Following that,
Learning Assistants with skills in the interventions
which would benefit the students most. Examples of
interventions in place; Sign Language classes,
Numicon - Number Knowledge intervention and
AWS - phonics and sounds intervention.

Learning Assistants continue to be upskilled in in
class interventions that can address a variety of
needs.

Some Learning Assistants have moved into their
own professional development with one LA enrolling
in night classes for Sign Language.

Learning Support

To cater for the learning needs of all groups of
students (well below, below, at and above) based
on data and relevant need

High Fliers has achieved notable success in
providing support to a diverse group of students,
including those in the ICS and ORS programs. AWS
has played a pivotal role in assisting a significant




portion of students who were referred due to ‘——‘
challenges in participating effectively in classroom
learning activities. Additionally, there are students
who have been assessed as meeting or exceeding
expected levels of performance, but they face
obstacles stemming from underlying conditions that
hinder their engagement. Collaborative discussions
have been held with their teachers, resulting in the
tailored support strategies for these students.

Hard launch and maintain the Learning Support
Register developed at Ml by ceasing the use of
now redundant systems.

The previous system of the Learning Support
Pathway has now been completely transitioned to
the internal LSR.

Implement and maintain the use of the Learning
Pathway for students being supported by the GnS
team through the Learning Support Register
developed at Mi.

The new system has proven to be incredibly
successful and is a well established part of the GnS
meeting procedures. Supporting the new DP: GnS to
ensure he is able to effectively utilise this tool is the
main goal for 2024.

Implement and maintain the use of student
Snapshot data to support students referred to the
GnS team.

The new LSC has been upskilled on how to run the
snapshots and has proven to be incredibly efficient
at it. The data collected is used in line of teacher
meetings to create bespoke interventions for high
needs students.

HAUORA

GBJ ECTIVES

—

ANALYSIS

GRADUATE PROFILE

Introduce the M Graduate Profile to Year 7
students and reinforce for Year 8's the importance
of this. Ensure there is a deep understanding of
what it means by drawing meaningful links to our
programme of learning as well as teaching and
reporting to it explicitly.

Having this as the Term One Hauora module allows
for a deeper understanding of each Graduate Profile
aspect. Students get an understanding of all eight of
the Graduate Profile aspects. However, it is some
teachers who voice that there does not need to be a
double of the Graduate Profile in Term One and that
this time could be used for something else. Opinion
would say though that students ALL need to know
the eight aspects fairly quickly once they start school
because of the importance that is placed on the
Graduate Profile. By doing the double up in term One
it also guarantees that students are exposed to the
aspects early and can talk about these. This had
been reviewed feeding into the 2024 timetable.

KEEPING OURSELVES SAFE (2024)

Teach students a range of safe practices that they
can use when interacting with other people, both
online and face to face. Teach students how to
recognise the difference between healthy and
unhealthy relationships, and encourage students
who have been or are being abused to seek help

2024 Formtime Module

This will happen in Module 5 2024

‘ SEXUALITY ROAD

It was an interesting topic this year. Before it started
in class there was more questioning from the staff




To support teachers in delivering high quality
learning for students around personal health and
wellbeing (Sexuality Road).

who didn’t feel confident as to why we do this and if it
could be broken into boys and girls. There was some
evidence of staff naivety as well as the students and
whanau. There were 21 students who did not
participate in this programme. Communication from
whanau indicated the reasons as being religion, their
child is too young to know this stuff, or that whanau
will be the ones to tell their child. It is interesting that
this number is the most it has ever been. Suggestion
that before it is done again in 2025 that the whole
staff undergo training around this programme.

NUTRITION
Develop a practical and technical understanding of
personal nutrition.

The nutrition lessons are probably arguably one of
the more important form time subjects that are
taught. Anecdotal conversations with teachers
revealed that the nutritional knowledge of the
students was quite variable. This probably reinforces
the need for teaching the unit. Science also covers
similar concepts: but it is good for the students to be
exposed to key ideas on how energy in food is
actually measured in a number of different ways.
Other key ideas that are important for students to be
exposed to are how sugary and fatty food affect our
vascular system. This is something that Putaiao will
also be looking at in Term 4, 2023.

MI SELF AND PEERS

Create meaningful links between Hauora and how
we care for ourselves and how physical changes
affect us as we grow.

There is little wrong with the focus of the units in form
time. All of the units have relevance. However, there
is a discussion to be had around how collaborative
planning works. Teachers could establish the broad
aims of the unit together, then gather resources they
think will be useful to meet those aims in a shared
folder. The actual sequences of teaching and how
the content is relayed to the students should be left
to the individual for the teacher. This would allow the
form teacher to adapt to their own class. Also: having
broader links to the curriculum would open planning
up for teachers. Certainly for units like this anyway,
which should be personalised to the class.

HUMANITIES

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Maintain collaborative practices such as peer
planning review and peer observations.

- Weekly buddy planning checks - feedback
given on eachother’s plan for the week.

- Ongoing Humanities lessons observations -
by Passion Pod leader and other colleagues.

- Modelling in class as and when necessary.

- Weekly optional planning meetings available
for Humanities to meet and do planning
collaboratively.




Ensure coverage and assessment of Achievement
Objectives of the NZ Social Science Curriculum is
maintained and is about the equivalent of one
period per week, though this may be integrated
across a week in a topic approach.

Social Science objectives selected from the
curriculum and linked into our Social Science
aspects covered in Humanities.

Social Science topics discussed and decided
on during Passion Pod meetings. We try to
keep topics relevant to - our students
interests,

Social Sciences included in weekly planning
- sometimes integrated into Reading and
Writing and sometimes done in isolation
(teacher’s choice).

Teachers use a variety of teaching resources
to present information relevant to the topics
covered in Social Science. For example,
books, online sources, videos, articles etc.
Resources are also differentiated to suit the
varying needs of students in our classes.

Commit regular time of significant length to
‘teacher talk’ in Passion Pod meetings whereby
Humanities teachers can compare approaches,
suggest ideas, share work results, discuss levels
etc.

Focus of the week and work ons going into
the new week are shared and discussed at
Passion Pod meetings as well as included in
our weekly planning reflections.

Sharing time during our passion Pod
meeting times - teachers share things that
they are doing/using in their Humanities
lessons. Often we are able to implement
ideas gathered during these sessions in our
lessons.

We also use Passion Pod times to discuss
observations we have made during our
Humanities lessons - the positives and the
negatives.

Discussing students of concern so that we
can identify what the best support for them
will be.

Humanities team also share resources
regularly.

Empowering and teaching children (& teachers
knowing NZC Literacy progressions) to verbalise
their own learning.

Use e-asttle reports to identify reading
weaknesses and successes.

Probes - one on one reading assessments
done with the students, great way for
teachers to see what the students are
capable of in their reading.

PACT assessments - Term 2 & 4.

Speech presentations done in Term 2.

We use our inquiry process and give
students the opportunity to share their
learning throughout the inquiry process.

We encourage different forms of feedback to
be used in Humanities lessons based on
students sharing of their learning and
understanding.

We offer different options for sharing -
verbal, written, visual, using technology




Clarity of Learning ie. Learning Intentions and
Success Criteria. Teachers understand the
importance of these and share and display these
for students.

Learning intentions and success criteria
have been a focus for us this year. Teachers
use these to explain what students are going
to be learning. Use the success criteria to
measure there success. Plenaries can be
linked to Learning Intentions and Success
Criteria - students are able to identify if they
have been successful or not during a lesson.
Identify their work ons.

Follow up tasks used as a way to check for
understanding of what students have learnt.
Follow up tasks linked to the learning
intentions and success criteria identified in
each lesson.

Plenaries are incorporated into lessons as
well - focus of these plenaries are linked
back to the learning intention and success
criteria that has been covered during the
lesson.

Using Speaking and Listening NZC objectives to
develop a positive learning environment where
questioning and verbalisation of learning is valued
and encouraged.

Done throughout the year. Whole class
discussions, small group workshops, group
guided reading sessions, AWS.
Presentations of speeches at the end of
Term 2.

Teachers model questioning and sharing of
understanding daily.

Create an environment where we encourage
everyone to share and fee! safe to do so.
Encourage active participation in all
discussions.

Encourage and model respectful listening in
the classroom and being open to everyone
sharing different ideas, beliefs and
understandings.

We use different forms of feedback to be
used in Humanities lessons based on
students sharing their learning and
understanding.

Humanities teachers need to show evidence of
new learning, creativity and innovation when using
digital technologies.

We share ideas and different resources we
come across using technology and integrate
it into our teaching.

We utilise online assessment tools such as
PAT's, Easttle and PACT.

Word chain - used as a learning support tool.
Google Classroom and Hapara are both
used to share and create classroom
resources and activities. Also used to
monitor what the students are doing online.
Google docs, slides and forms are used to
create and share resources and information.
Kahoot, Quizzes and Blooket are used in
different ways by teachers to hook students
in to topics, check for understanding and
also often used as part of plenaries. Kids




love it because it's fun and interactive! It can
also add an element of competition.

Humanities teachers will commit to keeping their
Humanities displays up to date. Recognising small
pieces of progress as ‘creates’ and will display
and/or celebrate the progress this represents. This
is as opposed to waiting for a summative ‘create’
at the end of a unit.

- Wall displays show different progress made
throughout the learning process.
Brainstorms, fact files, vocabulary walls etc.
not necessarily just completed writing tasks.

- We also share photos on Facebook of
learning we are doing.

- During Student Involved Conferences,
students share bits of their learning with their
whanau. This can be through slides
presented, hard copies of their work or work
displayed in their classes.

Students work in Humanities will be ‘showcased’ in
the school newsletter, in the main office and Room
62 corridor. This will be the responsibility of the
Humanities Passion Pod Leader.

Students work in Humanities has been ‘showcased’
in the following ways:
- Newsletter items
- Termly Facebook posts
- Room 62 student corridor
- Wall outside PLL office (main office) -
updated each term
- Spelling Bee competition - write up and
pictures
- Speech Competition - write up and pictures.
- Narrative story writing competition - write up
and pictures
- Narrative book created to keep in the library
for students and staff to read through
- MI Author’s wall display in the library (a new
addition)

Teachers keep up to date and relevant tracking to
support them in planning, telling students what
their strengths and work ons are. This can be
captured in the following ways:
e Student centred planning reflections
e Summative assessment data
e Ongoing formative assessment data such
as Reading group assessment sheets,
learning conversations and work samples.
e Evidence of tracking against the Literacy
Learning Progressions.

- Tracking folder created for each teacher in
our shared drive.

- PAT’s done in Term 1 and 4 and scale
scores entered onto our ongoing tracking
document.

- Probes done on every kid and reading ages
added to our ongoing tracking document.

- E-asttle reading is done each term and

results added to our ongoing tracking
document.

- PACT data collected and added into the
tracking.

- Weekly reflections included in our weekly
planning. In these reflections we also bring
up areas to work on and specific students
with things we are noticing/observing.

- We would like to move from PACT to Writing
E-asttle next year.

- Students strengths and work ons in Reading
and Writing are also shared with students
and whanau in Term 1, 3 and 4 reports.




Moderation on writing samples and Probe
assessments

Term 2 & 4 PACT assessment completed.
Moderating done during Passion Pod
meeting times.

Probes completed on all students by
Humanities teachers and LSC where
necessary.

Professional Development on assessment eg.
Probes, Easttles, reading skills programme,
structured literacy and writing skills

Weekly optional planning meetings used for
planning or workshops for Humanities
teachers (PACT, Probe, E-asttle and AWS
demonstrations and modelling done during
this time as well).

Modelling is also done during Passion Pod
meetings and in classrooms as and when
necessary.

Continue with the implementation of Structured
Literacy programme “Agility With Sound” with
support of RTLB, including pre and post test
analysis for identified students.

AWS running in Humanities classes for
selected students. Teachers are able to track
how students are progressing on Word chain
as well.

Develop key indicators to identify effective practice
and NZC tracking in Humanities.

Assess and document students progress
throughout the year.

Align our teaching with learning outcomes
from NZC.

Use a variety of teaching strategies and
resources to promote student engagement.
Incorporate the Broadening Horizons Model
in our teaching and students learning.
Planning and teaching is differentiated.
OTJ's are finalised based on ongoing
engagement, observations and
assessments.

Ongoing reflections on our own teaching
practice and implementing new knowledge
and strategies to improve.

Being open to feedback and suggestions
from colleagues and leadership in order to
improve our practice.

Teachers commit to the PaCT Tool to develop
knowledge of the NZC and increase the validity of
OTJ’s. Teachers use moderation to assess student
work to ensure consistency in assessment.

PACT assessment completed in Term 2 & 4.
Moderation of writing in Passion Pod
meetings.

Continue to use our schoolwide Inquiry model
effectively, while using a variety of topics to ignite
curiosity among students.

The Broadening Horizons Model is used for
our inquiry process.

Different Social Studies topics are covered
each term.

Our Inquiry topics discussed as a team
during Passion Pod meetings. They are
focussed on topics that are relevant and
align with the students interests.




A Reading Champion teaching position will be
introduced. This teacher will support identified
students reading mileage for .6 (three days) by
merely listening to them read in small groups.

- Our Reading Champion teacher has ran this
new programme this year.

- Has been a great opportunity to extend the
reading capabilities and skills of the middle
of the range students.

- Each term some students have been added
or removed based on their engagement and
participation during these sessions.

- Small groups of 4 - 6 students in each
session make fore effective engagement.

- There is a different focus for each week
based on the needs that the teacher
observes during her sessions.

LIBRARY

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

To ensure the maintenance of all library systems
including:
a. collections
b. management system
c. distribution of:
i. in-class, on-timetable time
ii. form class allocations,
d. basic organisation
e. student participation and leadership in
the library
f. physical environment including:
i.  soft furnishings
ii. permanent fixtures
g. involvement in curriculum design and
resourcing
h. role in promoting reading for
enjoyment in the school and wider
community

All library systems are maintained.

Books that were ordered last year by the previous
librarian have consumed over $2000 of the 2023
budget but new orders have recently been made to fil
gaps and expand the collections with the remaining
budget (with nothing on backorder to prevent this
happening again).

All library items on the library management system
are being updated one by one so the format of all
entries (over many years) is consistent across the
collections. Specific and consistent classification will
make it easier for all stakeholders to see exactly what
we have as well as helping everyone find what they
need.

It would be easier if | had control of how and when the
students are updated on the library management
system.

The timetable has been adjusted once during the
year.

The student librarians perform an important role in the
smooth running of the library and they feel immense
pride in their status. The number of students who
have enquired about joining the group has been
huge. There are also class librarians for each class.
The physical environment provides a warm and
inviting atmosphere for staff and students. The
planned placement and existing labeling of the
different collections has been altered to make it easier
for students to find and shelve books.

DEAR time, independent reading time during
scheduled library time, teachers’ reading activities in







| hope we can link this to the school website after
consultation and additions.

To provide opportunities for students to lead
library initiatives.

Class Librarians.
Student/School
position.

Room 25 (enrichment class) have been trialing
frequent library users teaching their peers during their
scheduled library sessions

librarian is a school leadership

For Book Week to become an annual event
coordinated and run by the Librarian

Yes - this has been added to the 2024 calendar

To review how the library refurbishment has
added value to the library experience for students
and staff.

The Library refurbishment has created an engaging
space for the students. The Library serves as a great
additon to the Humanities programme. The
refurbishment allows the library to be used as a
multi-purpose space as it is used for class library
sessions, breaktimes, period 6 and homework club. It
also provides a supervised space for ESOL students
to work with Ali and Rina, and is a comfortable area
for meetings. Anecdotal or informal observational
data suggests the students enjoy coming to the library
and find the space easy to access.

LIFE SKILLS

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

GRADUATE PROFILE

This is an effective way to introduce Life Skills to
the students using the context of the Graduate
Profile to support this. The Graduate Profile
needs the extra time to ensure it has more depth
to the learning of it so having two periods per
week for this is helpful.

Having this as the Term One Hauora module allows
for a deeper understanding of each Graduate Profile
aspect. Students get an understanding of all eight of
the Graduate Profile aspects. However, it is some
teachers who voice that there does not need to be a
double of the Graduate Profile in Term One and that
this time could be used for something else. Opinion
would say though that students ALL need to know the
eight aspects fairly quickly once they start school
because of the importance that is placed on the
Graduate Profile. By doing the double up in term One
it also guarantees that students are exposed to the
aspects early and can talk about these.

TAHA HINENGARO

Ensure a focus group of staff is set up to support
the implementation of this programme and how it
may need to change depending on the needs of
teachers and students. An example of this may
be connecting students with different stories or
examples that aid in emotional regulation,
mindfulness and well-being.

Focus group of staff was set up prior to this subject
being taught in Term two. There was discussion
around the emotion being the focus NOT the atua.
Therefore we changed it. The focus went on the
emotion that teachers decided their class needed to
work on. And part of being able to teach students
about that emotion included an atua, if the fit was
right. One member of the focus group also suggested
a website would support teachers and students with
their learning during this module. This website is
called Smiling Mind. It was suggested that teachers




use the activities on this site as a Hook In and
Plenary. The indication is that it worked better across
the school. It was also pleasing to see links between

Taha Hinengaro and Sexaulity Road happening as
well.

FIRST AID

To engage students in effective first aid practice
that will provide them with safe ways of dealing
with basic physical trauma.

First aid course refresh in the holidays prior to the unit
made staff feel more confident about teaching first aid
concepts. Many students could not articulate what to
do in common emergency situations (falls, sporting
injuries etc). Obviously relevant content to students’
lives and necessary knowledge to have.

M1 SKILLS

Develop teachers practice to engage students in
basic ‘life skill lessons determined throughout
Terms 1, 2 and 3.

MATHEMATICS

OBJECTIVES

Continue to develop a collaborative culture
where we use the strengths and knowledge of
our teachers to support student learning.

Use reallife contexts while learning through
concrete materials to develop new concepts and
student agency.

Improve differentiated teaching practices to meet
students' specific needs, including effective
assessment to diagnose student learning needs

Mi skills lessons are all about basic life skills that
students may need to have. Skills such as writing a
cover letter or changing a car tyre are covered. Basic
hygiene is also a focus of the MI skills lessons.
Coherence in a unit such as this is an obvious
challenge. This particular unit may be one that more
of inquiry focus could be brought to enhance
relevance for students. Perhaps the unit could be
taught under an umbrella of a career focus with a

student investigation underneath it.

ANALYSIS

interpret classroom
passion

- Ability to conversate and
culture as well as student progress during
pod meetings.

- Sharing of resources as well as pedagogical
advice daily to ensure the teacher is ready as well
as the tamariki.

- Regular optional meetings are held each
Wednesday where teachers can collaboratively

plan the following week’s lessons.

- Using rich learning tasks which allows students to
think critically.

- Our money mojo subject puts math into a real-life
context.

- Mathematical problems are given using contexts
the students understand and can relate to.

Meeting regularly to plan collaboratively so every
staff is on the same page planning.

- Ability to interpret learning objectives and relate to
the diversity of learning and personalities of our
individual classes to build learning experiences.

- Regular testing using a variety of testing tools

such as e-asTTLe, PATs, |IKaN and basic facts

tests to identify students with critical needs.




Create meaningful links within and between
strands in mathematics SO subjects do not
become siloed.

- This objective needs further development as Math
as curriculum area is very distinct and with the
trialling of the NZ Curriculm Refresh has become
more didactic which has supported  student
progress. Incorporating a more cross-curricular
approach would now be more beneficial.

Sustain the problem solving approach and the
use of rich tasks to embed mathematical
concepts.

- Use rich learning tasks during workshops with the
higher level groups has allowed for more critical
thinking and has produced some incredibly
productive learning conversations.

. Rich Learning Tasks has proven to be
inaccessible by our lower to mid range ability
students as they struggle to identify what the
question is asking and how to adaptively solving
the problem

Maintain a high number of observations,
co-teaching and modelling lessons for teachers
to strengthen and reinforce best practice.
Passion Pod leaders to create a schedule for
observations throughout the year utilising the
Practice Leader release time.

- The Practice Leader uses their considerable
release to move between classes, modelling and
supporting with feedback to improve the teaching

practice of the Pangarau teachers. This
additionally ~ provides ~an  open lihe of
communication to answer any queries or

educational misunderstandings and solve these
collaboratively.

Use the PaCT Model as a tracking tool
throughout the year to ensure the LPFs are a
main focus for our teaching practice.

- We use PaCT twice a year to track and see where
our students are at. Programmes can be tailored
using this tool to the needs of individual students.
The time necessary to use this tool however has
not proven to be an efficient use of resources.

Use the LPFs as a curriculum knowledge
building tool which will then be used to inform our
PaCT judgements.

- A more efficient and akonga friendly resources
was found and used early in term two which has
proven to be much more effective when
implemented as a tool for learning progression.
This should be made a priority in 2024. , J

-

MITV

OBJECTIVES ANALYSIS j
To build on students' ability to present at a | Yes. Students who have the opportunity to present on
performance level. MITV typically leave with a strong sense of

accomplishment, having spoken before the entire
school. This experience significantly contributes to their
confidence when presenting their learning in the
classroom.

To include more students into the tech side of
MiTV through a Period 6

This has not happened as of yet, but | am really curious
to see if students would be interested to partake in a
Period 6. This will be a focus for 2024

To refurbish the MITV studio to ensure it is fit for
the purpose of filming, recording and

This year, we've implemented a few modifications to
enhance our studio. We've added black curtains for




broadcasting with the appropriate acoustics and
technical requirements. Fulfill quotes obtained in
2022.

improved acoustices and acquired a new screen
monitor to replace the previous malfunctioning one.
We've also installed a professional, fabric-based
Green-Screen, which have also significantly improved
the acoustics of the space. These upgrades have
positively impacted the quality and functionality of our
studio.

A new camera and new laptop would be beneficial as
well as a new green screen so will be part of the
objective for 2024.

Continue to vary the places where we film MITV
around the school and go live from new
locations via MITV.

This would be a challenging task to achieve, because
we would need to carry all equipment to different
locations around the school, which could potentially not
be effective from a technological standpoint. However,
aspects that are not ‘live’ have been filmed in around
the school environment.

Keep on top of youtube as settings change all
the time with this free live solution that can affect
the day to day running of MITV. Usually updates
cause this.

Definitely. We constantly do sound checks and always
check our youtube account every morning before we go
live to ensure there are no technical issues during
MITV.

MONDAY MAGIC
OBJECTIVES ANALYSIS
SERVICE Service is overseen by DP: Student Programmes.
Support teachers in delivering high quality | When Service was the module of learning service was
programmes of learning and experiences | looked at in regards to what service actually means and

around service to others and the community.
a. Ensure service is maintained as
a long term engagement with the
objectives of our programme.
b. Ensure that MI ONA s
reintroduced and value is placed
on this concept.

the importance of it. Each Whanau had a selection of in
school services that they had responsibility for. Some
classes have maintained their service well throughout
the year but many have not. Service needs to be
consistently followed up and is still NOT engrained in
such a way that it just happens. The Community
Council presents the Service Award at weekly
assemblies. Sometimes it has been a struggle for them
to come up with a worthy winner for this. Perhaps an
out of school service needs to happen as well as a
culminating example of service. Maybe the value of in
school service does not support students AND teachers
understand the difference that can be made with it. Ml
ONA STILL needs to be valued and promoted across
the school. This is an area that should be done well but
has been a struggle the last couple of years. Suggest
that Service is an area of review for 2024, how can this
be done better?

COM LIT

Develop students’ communication skills across a
variety of contexis by exercising their ability to
actively listen and contribute as well as develop

Communication Literacy was Term Two's Monday
Magic module. Teachers were able to choose
communication skills that their class needed specific
support with. Once again it was a great module to do




oral language skills in both formal learning and
informal circumstances.

this as it sat alongside the focus of speeches in
Humanities. This also helps set up the expectations
around communication ie. effective oral and listening
skills for the rest of the year.

MONEY MOJO

To deliver deliberate acts of teaching around
financial capability to provide students with new
knowledge and vocabulary and enable students
to discuss financial capability and how this skill
impacts on their lives.

Money Mojo is a very relevant topic. Again, anecdotal
conversation with teachers showed that student
engagement was high. Differentiation within this topic is
relatively easy to achieve as lessons can range from
basic budgeting lessons to investigations into more
difficult concepts like inflation and interest.

NEW ZEALearning AssistantND HISTORY
Expand students' understanding of NZ History
and teach synthesis skills so they are able to
form informed opinions of historical occurrences
and how they have shaped NZ today.

New Zealand history is planned to be taught in Term 4
2023.

The planning for NZ Histories has covered basics of
colonisation, Pre-European history. There is a need to
look at planning overviews to make sure they align with
new curriculum. Also, more of a question for
investigation into 2024: how well are teachers using the
leveled content that already exist? le journals that
cover the content needed. Also: how can this unit
maximize the Broadening Horizon’s model to foster
student engagement?

MUSIC

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

To leave Music class having a positive and
confident attitude toward their own musical
journey.

| am confident that the majority of my music students
leave their music classes with a profound sense of
accomplishment. Each of them is encouraged to
perform on a musical instrument, challenging them to
step out of their comfort zone and experience a
significant feeling of achievement.

To learn rhythms, chords and melodies on
instruments such as the guitar, drums, voice,
ukulele, piano etc to a performance level.

This is done daily. Every day we learn melodies,
chords and rhythms on various instruments when
learning a song. Students have been taught to read
chord sheets so that they can take this knowledge
outside of the classroom - life long learners!

To work together in musical groups building on
team learning capabilities in a musical setting.

This is done when practicing songs and when
performing. Students are given the option of
performing by themselves or in group situations.
Students really step up showing natural leadership
skills when in a group setting.

To create new music through the use of melodies,
compositions and songs making clear links to
Level 3 and 4 of the NZ Curriculum.

This is done through the learning of instruments and
songs throughout the term. This is evident in all
planning and reflected upon weekly.

To have an understanding of musical concepts
and theory appropriate to their level and learning
styles.

We prioritize practical application while teaching
songs and instrument skills. We believe that theory
becomes truly meaningful when students can witness




their theoretical concepts being put into practice
during their song-learning sessions in every lesson.

PASTORAL CARE

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

To ensure that the in-school SWIS still has a major
role in training and mentoring the Pastoral Care
Council and that time is allowed twice a week (at
morning tea and toilet duty at lunch) to continue to
facilitate this.

Our SWIS does an amazing job with our Pastoral
Care Council and meets with them weekly. Toilet
duty continues to be done, even with reminders!
These students are actively involved in our school
and exhibit leadership qualities that go beyond their
designated roles. They actively participate in Senator
meetings, promote our PB4L program, and serve as
role models throughout the school.

To ensure the in school SWIS has the time to
meet with students about whanau issues and
outside factors that are affecting our students.

This happens on a consistent basis. Her care for our
students and whanau is to be praised. She does a
great job with this.

To ensure that the PC team continues to meet
once a week to ensure timely intervention for
children as regards to needs pertaining to health,
behaviour, attendance, family support and
counselling.

Yes. This was done every Monday. Students are
brought up and discussed in depth with specific
agencies, programmes, interventions and/or support
methods being applied strongly.

To continue to develop a Pastoral Care incident
card digital system that leadership can see to find
patterns in behaviour.

This has been done throughout the year and it has
been beneficial for follow up and improving our
quickness in response to certain events. A new
intervention is underway where our SMS (Musac
Edge) will now be used to record incidents. This will
be a more improved and an up to date way of
keeping records.

To ensure a smooth induction for the new

in-school counselor.

The new counsellor has been highiy effective. He
has made strong inroads to being part of the team
and has built strong relationships with students and
staff.

To appoint a new in-school SWIS from the Ministry
of Social Development.

New SWIS has been an asset to the school. She is a
great support to our in-school Social Worker and
continues to be a strong and effective member of the
pastoral team.

PERFORMING ARTS

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Explore and develop awareness of different dance
elements to express images, ideas and feelings in
dance.

This concept is imparted through workshops focussed
on generating various ideas for creating canons,
shapes, and levels. These workshops not only serve
to instruct but also significantly enhance one's
creative potential.




Encourage the use of topic specific vocabulary
when sharing and discussing ideas in dance.

This takes place as they work toward developing their
routines, where they exchange ideas and incorporate
them into a devised dance set.

Develop an understanding of the history of hip
hop and how it has changed over time making
links to culture and global movements.

This topic is introduced at the beginning of the lesson,
providing a concise overview of its origins, historical
context, and its impact on our community.

Prepare and present a dance using a variety of
choreographic processes (cannon, shapes, level
changes, formations and transitions) making links
to level 3 and 4 of the NZ Curriculum.

element is consistently emphasised
throughout  the workshop  process. Participants
become fully immersed in crafting their dance
routines, actively establishing connections with the
New Zealand Curriculum at levels 3 and 4. This
signifies the depth of education and engagement our
children are experiencing.

This crucial

Encourage high standards in dance by providing
ongoing feedback to groups and individuals to
better prepare them for their final assessment and
own performing arts journey.

Feedback plays an integral role in the learning
journey, with regular assessments occurring at various
points. This includes providing guidance to students
on areas needing improvement throughout the lesson
and offering feedback once they've showcased their
creative progress. This iterative feedback process isa
significant and essential component of the overall
learning experience.

Where appropriate and relevant, take
opportunities to incorporate drama techniques into
students' performances.

We only implement this approach when it becomes
necessary. If students wish to include drama as part of
their assessment, it is entirely acceptable. Our aim is
to foster creativity without imposing limitations, so if
students feel more comfortable presenting a skit as
their assessment, they are encouraged to do so.

PHYSICAL EDUCATION

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Continue to maintain a budget that will continue to
cover/replace high use equipment  (replace
equipment thrown out at the end of the year)

There is a strict budget that is adhered to. There is
regular stock takes done by our PE staff with old and
tired equipment gotten rid of. A good example would
be the new athletic equipment and trolley that will be
very useful for guiding and progressing for school
sports events.

Offer a differentiated programme to ensure all
students are catered to.

All of our lessons target different paces of practical
learning. We differentiate by offering students to lineup
in their ability groups - Gold, Silver, Bronze.

From there, students are arranged to stay in their
groups to play with or against each other.

Develop resources for non mainstream/different
sports students who are not usually exposed to
PE.

Differentiation parts of our lessons aré covered in our
ability groups: Bronze, Silver, Gold.

This involves PE equipment, such as dodgeballs
or rubbery

instead of volleyball to practice a skill,
donuts instead of weighted discus.




Continue to enhance and develop an assessment
programme to ensure all students are tracking
towards our objectives. (example athletics
programme, test at the start, train and then test at
end for improvement) Having more opportunities
for self assessment.

Putting up the Learning Intention and Success Criteria
on the board in the gym for introduction and referral.
Teachers have specific, targeted criteria to assess
students on. Feedback cards, where students have
voice in how well they are doing, what areas they
have identified they want to get better in and what
they enjoy about the subject. Questioning students to
check in for understanding of lesson.

Teach Maori and Pacific Islands Sports as part of
our PE programme.

We've introduced cultural games, like Kia o Rahi, into
our programme. Our PE teachers frequently
incorporate warm-up games inspired by island sports
to help students get into the right mindset for their PE
lessons. This approach has positively influenced the
engagement of the students in PE classes.
Additionally, our Recreation Games, which involve
full-school sports rotations, include island sports like
Lape and Ano, adding cultural diversity to our sports
programme.

Develop a safety plan for using the school pool

Waiting for the pool to be completed.

Develop a programme for the use of pool during
lessons

Waiting for the pool to be completed.

SCIENCE

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Design a Science programme that includes a
majority of time on hands-on practical
opportunities where students are able to engage
and communicate their learning.

o Practical lessons are a regular feature of science
planning - teachers always ensure we have at
least 50% practical and 50% theory each week. In
some instances, it is crucial for students to be
working on the practical aspects of their
investigation, provided they know what they need
to do and can get on with it

o Changes to the fortnightly planning structure in
Terms 3 and 4 have made resourcing and planning
for hands-ons lessons more practical for the
science team allowing more time to teach a
particular concept

o This also ensures students are able to engage on
a deeper level into a concept they are more
interested in learning about

o Still consistently using and incorporating the
Broadening Horizons model in our lessons to guide
their own investigations

o The Enrichment Class in particular, has had the
opportunity to complete a 5 week investigation
based on scientific questions of their choice. They
have enjoyed the flexibility to engage and
communicate theories they have learned J




Continue to make opportunities to talk with and
see in action what local High Schools and
Primary Schools do in regard to their Science
programmes in order to build more Science
capability within our learners.

Collaboration with Across School Teacher (Aaron
Peeters) on data analysis for NZCER Science test:
specifically analyzing effect  size and
appropriateness of testing tools. This work could
potentially contribute to developing localized
reporting of a curriculum level in science

Rita and Charlotte share back any discussions
they have had with our local High Schools and
Primary Schools about what is currently happening
in terms of their achievement challenges

Need to find opportunities to talk with Science
Curriculum leads in High School and/or Primary
schools to see how we can align our programmes
a bit better

Collaborate prior to upcoming modules during
Passion Pod meetings to discuss themes, overall
ideas, planning, etc. that all staff can share.

Planning during passion pod meetings about term
overviews, and creating lessons for all of science
to use and tweak to their own liking

All enjoying planning coliaboratively - allows us to
work together, spitball ideas, use our individual
strengths and support those who are teaching
Science for the first time. This also helps with
consistently and cohesiveness across the team
Deciding at the end of the previous term, what our
focus will be for the following term, has been really
beneficial and allows the team time during the
holidays to plan their lessons in greater detail
Learned from our mistakes in Term 2, where we
picked a theme before looking at the different skills
and concepts we needed to teach. This made it
difficult to find relevant hands on opportunities for
our students. We now know that we must look at
the skills and activities, before picking the theme
Collaborating prior to upcoming modules has
allowed individuals to focus on their strengths, as
well as providing our students with Science
teaching and learning that is built on the strengths
of many teachers, rather than just one.

Ensure all Science teachers are able to make
explicit links to the Nature of Science and/or
Science Skills Rubric when planning and
teaching. Make links with how Science has
changed the world and its relevance to them.

Passion Pod meetings involve many opportunities
to talk about the NoS and/or Science Skills to
boost each other's understanding around how
these can be taught in class

Links to these aspects are made in all planning
docs and is expected by everyone in the team

We are always looking at ways we can create
lessons to further the understanding of our
students. For example, in Term 2 we looked at how
Science had changed the world, through the lens
of different Scientists and the impacts their
discoveries have had on us today

Teachers make links to the real world, using
authentic teachable moments even if this differs
from their original planning, we use these valuable
learning opportunities




o Making links between the science skills and skills
used in other learning areas, for example, a
scientific hypothesis is similar to making
predictions in reading/Humanities

Ensure planning is consistently done and where
possible make links to the module themes.
Ensure there is differentiation in planning and
teaching delivery to address and cater to a range
of student learning needs.

o Term overviews are always planned in line with
modules as much as possible. This year's module
topics have enabled the Science team to make
great links, for example:

- In Term 2 the module was Curiosity so we
looked at different scientists and what made
them curious in their discoveries

- In Term 3 the module was Adventurous so
we looked at energy, sound, migration and
transportation within The Physical World

o Differentiation is always encouraged and as
Passion Pod leader, something | look out for each
week as | am checking planning - whether it is
done by content, process, output or the learning
environment they are in

o Teachers make changes to the collaborative
lesson plans based on the needs of the classes
and students they teach

o Plan for use of Learning Assistants - especially
those teachers who have regular Learning
Assistant’s in their classrooms

o Planning is checked each week and feedback on
to make further improvements and ensure delivery
of the lessons caters to the needs of our students

Use a relevant tracking system that will capture
students’ progress against the learning outcomes
for Science.

o This is our focus for Term 2. Everyone has
developed their own ways to track their students
progress. Some opt for online tracking, while the
oldies have opted for a old school tracking book

o Have shared our different ways of tracking with the
team, which has been a great help to our younger
teachers

o We've emphasised the need to have tracking
systems in front of us during lessons

o We did a moderation session in Term 3. All bought
along an example of Needs Support, Working
Towards, At and Above levelled work so we could
compare what we thought, with some Science
Exemplars

o Gained a better understanding of what to look for
in student work to support our tracking of student
progress

SUSTAINABLE ENTERPRISE

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Research real life issues and problems as a
platform to develop a business/prototype and
ensure students have appropriate space, tools

Our Sustainable Enterprise teacher has trialled a few
different approaches since their study leave last year.
The one issue that continue to persist is the business




and resources (including staffing resources) to
'invent', creative solutions and develop a product
idea and/or prototype. Ensure students have a
‘real life’ design brief and space to share their
product/solution ideas

element as there is simply not enough time for
students to develop, test and modify a prototype
(potentially more than once) and then set up a
business. Design briefs are real life and have had
experts into present to classes over the year. This
has worked really well. One thing that we really keen
to do is to try bringing the environment and the
students together - place-based learning. There is a
huge issue with this in the fact that we are trying to do
this with more than one class. VR sets could be
useful to bring the environment into the classroom.
We will investigate this to see if we can get some
funding for 2024. It would be great to learn to build
worlds so that the students can experience what it
would be like within a particular environment. This is
an amazing tool and The more real the learning is the
better. It has been amazing having a really effective
E4S teacher with a huge amount of expertise and we
feel that this year, more than any other, the students
have a real understanding of what sustainability is
and why it matters so much as it has been reinforced
and applied in different contexts over and over again.
After review we look to rebrand this subject to
Sustainable Design for 2024.

Ensure students identify and can explain the
elements of STEAM they are using in the solution
to their design brief and prototype development

This has worked really, really well this year and the
STEAM fair definitely helped. Regardless, the work
the students did in Term 1 demonstrated how
effective this has been. To be continued and further
developed, | think we can do more with STEAM and
collaboration within module subjects (see mid-year
stocktake), however, this would take quite a bit of
reorganisation and | don’t know if it is a direction that
the schoo! wants to move in. A Maker Space
(Inquiry, STEAM, Integrated learning, real-life
problem solving, creativity, collaboration etc) would
be superb and would allow us to effectively integrate
subjects, reinforce learning and recall effectively and
give the students some concrete experiences in
different contexts to support them to initiate behaviour
change in themselves and others.

Ensure cultural perspectives are incorporated into
all learning (links with MaP and PaP)

Cultural perspectives are included in all discussions
that we have, they are imperative to what we are
trying to achieve in this subject. Indigenous
perspectives are vital if life on this planet is going to
continue. We talk about the Atua and their energies
and use videos that have a cultural perspective
(many cultures however, Maori culture is probably the
main focus at the moment). We have just started to
experiment with using stories to see how this impacts
on recall of new ideas and concepts. Comparing
stories from different cultures with a similar context is
really helpful.




Ensure links with technology where appropriate
(both use of in the design process and in the
product or access to the product itself)

This is being developed and we have experimented
with different technologies in the design process and
also including some in the projects themselves
(Microbits, design software, video software, drawing
software etc). More can be done with this and will
continue to make this a bit of a focus, particularly in
exploring the use of VR technology and ways of
adding, for example, moving parts to prototypes.
Again, more of a Maker Space would be supportive of
this, particularly if we had a clean space somewhere
so that we could ensure precious equipment was not
covered in sawdust for example. Mostly tech is kept
separate from messy work, however, on occasion
students need to watch tutorials as they work and it
can be hard to keep keyboards etc as clean as we
would like. We are working to solve this issue
currently.

Ensure at all times the necessary Health and
Safety requirements for the running of the
workshop are maintained with the provision of a
support person during the production phase of
each module.

To be honest, this continues to be a bit difficult as the
room is not really built or organised for this subject.
Though the space is amazing and there is no carpet,
there are quite a few corners and places students can
be out of sight. We don't have workbenches and
power switches are along the side of the room
meaning we trail extension cables across the room.
Kids have to use saws and some other equipment
outside and one teacher cannot be in more than one
place at once! There are some relatively simple
changes we could make to alter this which hopefully
would not break the bank. For example;, we could
remove some of the sinks/ovens to create more
workspace (we dont need them all), put in some
workbenches and remove some of the tables and
alter the room so that students have access to the
front space and not the back - this could be more like
my office/work/more dangerous tool storage. The
issue with this is that we have no external storage
and | wouldn’t want students to just help themselves
as resources are shared between classes. We have
managed to collect some large whiteboards for
brainstorming and it would be great to add these to
the walls - which could be done to be used if we had
some of the sink units removed. We could also
potentially do more with the laundry space if we could
make/put in some more shelving. It remains important
to have a second adult in the room when projects are
in full swing.

TE AO MAORI

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Continue to support teachers to incorporate Te
Reo Maori in their everyday teaching, by way of

o Started with Te Reo Maori PD in Term 1 and
lessons were enjoyed by staff




Te Reo Maori PD at the beginning of each whole
staff meeting.

Good to have other staff members get up and
share their expertise in Te Reo Maori with the
staff

The teacher of Te Ao Maori, in her capacity as
ASCoLLT AC:1, has been afforded the time to be
in and out of classes during Form Time to support
teachers to incorporate Te Reo Maori into their
everyday teaching

She noticed that many teachers spent most of
this time learning and teaching our school
Whakamoemiti and Haka which is good, but it
also meant that the ideas/lessons from our PD
sessions were not used by everyone

Ensure children who have Maori language
capacity are supported to represent the school
on relevant occasions e.g. Powhiri. This
support will be facilitated by the MAP

Students are encouraged to join the Marae
Committee and be part of the Powhiri process,
even though they are not part of the Cultural
Council. It has been good to see ‘other’ students
stepping up in these areas allowing us to grow
our Maori capacity and spread this across the
school

The Cultural Council have really come into their
own this year, taking the lead in Marae Stay
powhiri even when there are no teachers present.
It has been great to see this develop

The Cultural Council are also made available to
support teachers prior to their Marae Stays

We have very few students who can speak or
understand Te Reo Maori, which is disappointing,
however we have ensure these students are
confident to take the lead in key roles or support
others in these roles, such as - kaikorero,
kaikaranga, kapa haka leaders etc

Support the staff and students when
celebrating specific cultural weeks such as Te
Wiki o Te Reo Maori and Matariki.

Incorporation of Matauranga Maori is integrated
throughout the Science learning and teaching
(rahui, matariki)

Te Wiki o Te Reo Maori recsouces were shared
and encouraged during this week

Mokoia in particular is very passionate about Te
Reo Maori and it was good to see him and hear
him get up and share with the whole staff. It was
then left up to the teachers to choose which
lessons they would like to use

Te Wiki o Te Reo Maori celebrations were simple
and effective this year and it was good to see
everyone getting involved in the everything that
was going on - waiata before 8am, our ladies
learning a poi, the men learning a haka, breakfast
at the wharekai, quizzes throughout the week, poi
rakau lunchtime competitions etc

Te Ao Maori (Module Subject)




Develop the use of Te Reo Maori vocab when
sharing and discussing ideas in Te Ao Maori to
build a common language amongst students.

The teacher of Te Ao Maori has found a good
balance in terms of vocabulary and basic
sentence structures to help build a common
language
Beginning with greetings, proper pronunciation of
the Maori alphabet and then moving on to
sentences to ask and answer questions about:

- How they are feeling

- What they are doing

- What this object is (using ténei, t€n3,

tera)

Every lesson begins with Te Reo Maori and
students know what to expect when they arrive
and fortunately don’t shy away from it
Students are familiar with the learning outcomes
and a common language is developing across the
whole school
It would be good to come up with a new set of Te
Reo Maori sentence structures for next year, so
they are not learning the same sentences but
instead and building on what they already know.
Will have to see what their retention is like.

Continue to create a differentiated learning
programme that follows the Broadening Horizons
Inquiry model as well as upholds Tikanga Maori.

The teacher of Te Ao Maori has maintained a
differentiated learning programme that links
perfectly to some really important aspects of not
only Tikanga Maori, but Te Ao Maori. For
example:

- Mod 3: Manurewatanga

- Mod 5: Kaitiaki o te Ao Maori

- Mod 7: Pacific Migration

- Mod 8: Tiaki te Taiao
Ensures all topics follow the Broading Horizons
model and sufficient time is spent exploring each
of the above aspects. This can be seen in the
teacher’s term overviews
Tikanga Maori is definetly embedded in the
teacher’s practice as a teacher of Te Ao Maori, as
leader of Marae Stays and Cultral Council
Next step for 2024 is to use only Te Reo Maori
words for the Broadening Horizons model,
instead of the worlds Embark, Brainstorm,
Explore and Share (not sure why | hadn’t thought
of this before now).

Continue to build a deeper understanding about
the importance of the Legend of Manurewa and
how this is an important part of our Manurewa
history.

Students learn about the Legend of Manurewa at
the beginning of each year, through Te Ao Maori
module subject if they have it in Term 1.
Otherwise, they learn about this from their Form
Teacher in the lead up to their Marae Stay
Perhaps this is something that needs to happen
at the beginning of each new module, so all
classes hear it and learn it properly from the
same person?

Incorporated skits this year where students
learned about the legend and then created their




own 2 minute skit, showcasing the story to their
peers.

Make links to other cultures’ tikanga and
protocols to support the learning of Tikanga
Maori.

o Within Te Ao Maori, the teacher is able to make
links to other cultures tikanga and protocols to
support the learning of Tikanga Maori.

o This kind of expertise requires a teacher to have
a bit of experience and confidence in their own
understanding of other cultures, to enable them to
make such links. The teacher of Te Ao Maori is
the perfect person to be able to do this as she
has had experience teaching all kinds of cuitures

o Incidental conversations often come up in class
about the different tikanga and beliefs. It's really
cool to have students make these connections or
be willing to share how their tikanga arefis the
same as Tikanga Maori.

VISUAL ARTS

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Embed topic specific and academic vocabulary in
art, whilst adding extension for students where
appropriate.

This has been embedded in the delivery of various
media throughout the year in Visual Art.

Develop an approach that allows students in a
two year period to experience 2D and 3D
artworks.

This year we have continued to cover both 2D and 3D
artwork across the terms. We will continue to focus on
this also next year as we cover different media again
the following year. However, we will look to extend the
learning from 2023 to ensure the Year 8's have the
extension learning available.

Broaden the culturally responsive pedagogy used
in visual arts.

Students have continued to be exposed to different
artists from across NZ and the Pacific. This year
students have also been given the opportunity to
develop their skills and processes to develop a Hei tiki
and a Fan using traditional or contemporary colours.
This also makes links to traditional language both in
and out of the subject area.

Develop assessment capable learners in visual
arts through students being clear about what they
are going to learn, how and why they are going to
learn it, how they will know they have been
successful at learning.

We have included feedback time where students are
able to share their ideas and explain about what they
are learning with the teacher focussing on the report
indicators.

Students are able to discuss with their peers about what
they have achieved and where to next.

To develop a well-stocked practical Art Room, in
response to topics taught in Visual Art (not
school-wide).

Every term, the teacher ensures that we have the
necessary resources to complete our set projects. This
is an ongoing process, with continuous monitoring to
ensure that specific resources are kept up to date and
readily available for each project.




Ensure students get opportunities to display their
completed art work at school eg. the Staffroom
and outside of school eg. Auckland Middle School
Art Exhibition.

Art displays are changed in the staffroom each term.
The teacher of art has also created a gallery of students
artwork in the classroom for other students to make
positive critical feedback on.

This year we entered one outfit into the Toi Showquest
(Wearble arts) and got a reward for innovative use of
materials. We will continue this next year and look at
entering more outfits. The initial process started off
during formtime, it needs to start at the beginning of the
year as the process does take the students a while to
complete. This has taken place as a Period 6.

X-PLO TECH

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

To provide a more streamlined and efficient theory
component with the overall aim to create a much
more practical experience for the students.

Going through the planning and making sure that the
talking time is minimal in order to support student time
working with a range of tools.

Providing multiple training opportunities for a range of
tools within the XPLO room and allowing students to
use power tools. Looking at projects that streamline
and scaffold in the use of, and learning of, power
tools.

Incorporate a programme that is more inclusive of
students who struggle with mathematics while
providing authentic opportunities for mathematical
development during the design process.

By having the planning stage at the start of the term
the students learn to use the math skills prior to the
hands-on skills. This allows them the time and focus to
develop their skills in the design process.

To ensure that all students are made aware that
technology is addressing an authentic need using
innovation, which can apply to any problem
regardless of context or curriculum area.

Using the Stanford design process students work to fix
real problems that they learn the skills to plan and
then create a prototype. The use of technology reflects
the needs of the problem.

To use a range of materials using a process that
ensures students are developing skills they can
take with them beyond their time with us.

By offering both hard materials such as wood and
metal alongside soft materials like textiles, students
are able to use a range of materials throughout the
building process of different prototypes within XPLO
Tech. They learn to work with these materials and
learn a range of skills that allow them to create a
range of different prototypes.

Display student work around the school.

Students are given their projects once they are
complete. As students complete a pre-project at the
start of the term and a final project at the end they are
able to display both; whereas one usually stays in their
homeroom class or is taken home.
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FURTHER ANALYSIS OF RAW OTJ MATHS DATA IN RELATION TO PAT

MATHEMATICS

- Female Year 7 students who Need Support have decreased from 32% in Mid Year Data to 27%.

- Female Year 7 students who are Working Towards have decreased from 47% in Mid Year Data to
39%.

- Female Year 7 students who are At Expectation have increased from 20% in Mid Year Data to
28%.

- Female Year 7 students who are Above have increased from 2% in Mid Year Data to 6%.

- Male Year 7 students who Need Support have decreased from 37% in Mid Year Data to 35%.

- Male Year 7 students who are Working Towards have decreased from 37% in Mid Year Data to
35%.

- Male Year 7 students who are At Expectation has increased from 16% in Mid Year Data to 20%.

- Male Year 7 students who are Above has increased from 4% in Mid Year Data to 9%.

- Total number of Year 7s who are Above is 35, which is 8%. PAT indicates that 25% of Year 7
students are sitting between 4P to 5A. This pattern of under reporting Above students repeats
itself across the different subjects.

- Total number of Year 7s who are At is 104, which is 23%. PAT indicates that 25% of Year 7
students are sitting between 3A and 4P. This indicates that the Raw OTJ data here is accurate in
terms of the total percentage. But, perhaps not the individual student.

- Total number of Year 7s who are Working Towards is 161, which is 37%. PAT indicates that 25% of
Year 7 students are sitting between 3B and 3P. Again, this validates the OTJs that teachers are
making.

- Total number of Year 7s who Need Support is 139, which is 31%. PAT indicates that 25% of Year 7
students’ achievement is lower than 2B with a peak at 3B. Again, this validates the OTJs that
teachers are making at least in terms of total percentages.

- Female Year 8 students who Need Support have decreased from 28% in Mid Year Data to 16%.

- Female Year 8 students who are Working Towards have decreased from 56% in Mid Year Data to
53%.

- Female Year 8 students who are At Expectation have increased from 15% in Mid Year Data to
28%.

- Female Year 8 students who are Above have increased from 1% in Mid Year Data to 3%.

- Male Year 8 students who Need Support have decreased from 30% in Mid Year Data to 23%.

- Male Year 8 students who are Working Towards have decreased from 47% in Mid Year Data to
42%.

- Male Year 8 students who are At Expectation has increased from 19% in Mid Year Data to 28%.

- Male Year 8 students who are Above have increased from 4% in Mid Year Data to 7%.

- Total number of Year 8s who are Above is 23, which is 5%. PAT indicates that 25% of Year 8
students are sitting between 4P to 5A. Again, what is affecting the teacher’s willingness or ability
to recognise more of these students as Above? How many are actually 4A and above versus 4P7?

- Total number of Year 8s who are At is 133, which is 28%. PAT indicates that 25% of Year 8
students are sitting between 4B to 4P. This indicates that the Raw OTJ data here is accurate in
terms of total percentage.
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Total number of Year 8s who are Working Towards is 227, which is 47%. PAT indicates that 25% of
Year 8 students are sitting between 3P and 4B. Something doesn'’t align here: more students need
to be put into At Expectation, perhaps?
Total number of Year 8s who Need Support is 93, which is 20%. PAT indicates that 25% of Year 8
students’ achievement is lower than 2B with a peak at 3P. Again, this validates the OTJs that
teachers are making in terms of total percentages.
Is the lower assessment load during PAT assessment windows having a positive effect on test
scores? You have one PAT test in mathematics versus three in Humanities, one of which does not
correspond to a curriculum level.
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End of Year
Learning Support

Report
2023



Welcome to the Year-End Learning Support Update! It's my pleasure to once again highlight the incredible
efforts invested in supporting our diverse learners at Ml—those with physical, sensory, and learning
differences. A heartfelt thank you goes out to the Guidance and Support team, whose invaluable
contributions make all of this possible. | also extend my gratitude to the leadership team for their

unwavering support, making my role truly enjoyable.

| want to express a special appreciation for Nirvana Rao, our exceptional Learning Support Coordinator,
whose tireless dedication has left a lasting impact on our students these last three terms and a heartfelt
welcome to Ben Nathan who will be replacing me as the Deputy Principal: Guidance and Support. He has
had the privileged position of the entire Term Four as a transition term so | have high hopes and

expectations for him.

Additional thanks are due to the members of our Guidance and Support team, as well as collaborators from
other organizations. Debbie Law and Jen Butler who have played pivotal roles in supporting our more
complex students, offering invaluable advice and flexibility. Elise Troy's proactive and solution-oriented

approach, always prioritizing students, is greatly valued.

Special appreciation is reserved for the Te Tautoko team, whose boundless energy, adaptability, and
genuine care for our students make them an extraordinary resource. Their proactive and student-centric
focus sets them apart as Learning Assistants. Looking ahead, | am thrilled about enhancing their capacity

and adopting a more learning-centred approach to support in the classroom next year.

| encourage you to embrace the positive tone of this report. While some of our learners face challenging

journeys, the collective motivation behind our efforts enables students to achieve fantastic progress.

T Mo

Dan Filippini
Deputy Principal: Guidance and Support
December 2023
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In-Class Support (ICS) Funded Students

In-Class Support was a brief process this year as it was decided at the Kahui-Ako meeting to allocate ali
ICS to primary schools in a bid to intervene in some of the more complex ‘COVID babies’ that are starting
school. The new students are showing some phenomenally complex behaviours and this intervention,
provided it is used properly, will support us in later years. As such we have no ICS for 2024. This will mean
that the pressure will be on the team to identify and intervene earlier to support our more at risk tamariki.

ORS (Ongoing Resource Scheme) Students:

ORS funding is a government-led scheme to support students with significant needs which impact heavily
on their ability to participate in school. To be eligible the student should be performing academically at
about half their actual age. So for a student at Ml to be eligible for the scheme they should be reading,
writing and have the mathematical ability of a 5 to 6-year-old. This also cannot be because of poor whanau
support or other similar reasons. A student can also be eligible for the scheme if they have some form of
significant physical impairment such as vision or hearing loss or an inability to move without assistance.
Once approved the scheme follows the child and lasts until they are 21, so consequently, approval is very
rigorous.

Currently, at Manurewa Intermediate School, we have four ORS funded children. Three are male and one is
female and are in rooms 19 with Nathan Edwards, 24 with Mareena Henare, 26 with Faith Huang and one
in room 62 with Mokoia Huata. The decision to place these students with these various teachers is based
on the support and strengths those teachers have to offer as well as their relative backgrounds.

Child RL, a Year 7 male student in Room 19 acquired ORS for his learning challenges across all areas of
the curriculum. RL is working at year one of the curriculum and his programme in class needs to be
completely differentiated from his peers. Additionally, RL suffers from ADHD (Attention Deficit Hyperactivity
Disorder) to quite a significant degree and while not directly related to his funding does mean that he
struggles to maintain focus in class and is incredibly impulsive. As such he has been assigned a large
number of LA (Learning Assistant) hours, especially during literacy and Math. With support, RL has
achieved success this year and made consistent progress across all areas. Next year careful consideration
will be given to who he is placed with as his current teacher leaves in the middle of the year.

Child LR, a Year 8 male student in Room 24 arrived later in Term One following a breakdown in the
relationship between his whanau and the special school he was previously enrolled in. LR has some of the
most complex diagnoses | have seen in my time and MI. He is diagnosed with ADHD, ASD (Autism
Spectrum Disorder), FASD (Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder), an intellectual disability and reactive
attachment disorder. Additionally, he suffers from Mood dysregulation disorder and has self harmed when
reacting to negative emotional stimuli. LR has acclimated extremely well and is now participating and
contributing well in the school and found himself a role as Mr Taylor’s personal assistant. Unfortunately, LR
has recently had two seizures while at school and there are growing concerns he is developing epilepsy
though we are still awaiting information from the paediatrician. Transition support for this student has been
extensive.

Child MT, a Year 8 female student in Room 62 successfully acquired ORS at an early age as she was born
profoundly deaf. Despite getting cochlear implants which in her case increase her hearing to the same level
as a hearing-enabled child she still requires significant and ongoing support day to day. A recent upgrade
has meant that the instances of her hearing aids failing are considerably fewer and she has therefore had
fewer disruptions to her learning. Also as part of her ORS, MT has access to a Resource Teacher for the



Deaf (RTD) who comes in twice a week and teaches MT sign language as well as supporting her
technology in the classroom. This RTD is supplied by Kotaku Reo (previously Kelston Deaf Centre), the
people responsible for helping children with hearing challenges in New Zealand.

Child JF a Year 8 male student in Room 26 successfully acquired ORS while at our school later in Term
Three. This was directly related to his vision which the Form Teacher Faith Huang has been stalwartly
advocating for support throughout his time at MI. JF was diagnosed with severe damage to his retinal nerve
due to poor diet. This damage is irreparable and he will need support for the remainder of his life. He is
extremely intelligent however and has adapted very well to his environment and he will likely be successful
in the future at high school provided they support him effectively.



Humanities Learning Support

PURPOSE

The Learning Support programme is an in-class programme designed to focus on the needs of low-ability
students specifically in literacy. The Humanities and form-time teachers have selected these students. Itis
run by an experienced teacher with a group of students who will work with the teacher in class twice a week

for a term.

Programme

Each session of the programme involves:
- A written component focussing on a key skill. This may be through editing and improving,
brainstorming or completing sentences.
- A phonics session focussing on sounds, prefixes, suffixes and is completed through discussions
and also spellings.

Feedback

The students were selected by the Humanities teachers and Form Teachers. They
chose three or four students who were low and not getting any further support from
the different programmes that are run by the school. The timetable was created to
see the students twice a week, due to my timetable with the science lessons that |
also teach some of the classes had to be split up into different terms or twice on
the same day. This was not ideal but necessary to get through them all. The only
class that was not selected was the enrichment class.

Term Three started in Week Three of the term with the students once they had
finished their UN Show and it was full on. 1 really enjoyed the time with the students
and some of them made really good progress and | was able to form a good
relationship with some of them. Term Four was interesting | missed the first week
of the term due to illness and this threw me for the start of the term while |
recovered. It was great to reconnect with some of the students from earlier in the
year that | was finishing off the sessions with. It was also really good to get
feedback from one of the Deputy Principals who was taking a class that | had
previously had in Term One. They said that when asked what an adjective was one
of the students CR responded with | did that with Miss Fox and turned to the back
of his book and was able to answer the question. This was affirming to know that
they were using the information that they were working with and applying it.

Class Analysis

Term Three

Room 73 - 3 Male -2 Year 7, 1 Year 8

| struggled with this group at first, they were quite apathetic and took quite a bit to
get focussed especially one of the boys. There were absences as well from all
three boys over the term which meant | did not see them as much as | hoped. The
work that they completed though was good and in that smaller group setting were
able to come up with some good ideas that they then applied to their writing.

Room 19 - 2 Male, 1 Female - 3 Year 7

| was expecting this group to be really easy to get on with as | have them for
science and they know me already. This though was not the case they were very
shy, reticent and did not share easily. One of the males was better than the others
and showed more focus and ease in sharing as time went on faster than the other
two. They all grew in confidence and shared more freely. There was improvement
in their spelling and identifying the sounds.




Room 71 -3 Male -1 Year 7,2 Year 8

These three were great to start with and | really enjoyed working with them. They
engaged well with the sessions and from the get go would share ideas and want to
share their spelling and it became quite competitive. Towards the end, the two Year
8s took a bit longer to get involved as | think they felt self conscious about working
with me. While with me though they continued to be engaged and | am happy with
all the improvement that they made, though it is ensuring that they keep up the
effort when not with an adult.

Room 22 - 2 Male, 1 Female - 3 Year 7

This was a mixed group in regards to the involvement. The female was very
appreciative and although very quiet was happy to get the support. The boys were
more hesitant and quiet but got better as time went on and they understood why |
was with them and what we were doing. Only saw once a week continued in Term
Four.

Room 75 - 2 Male, 2 Female -2 Year 7, 2 Year 8

This was a good group of students who showed progress in what they were doing
and in their confidence in sharing ideas and spelling. The girls were very involved
and receptive they were great at giving suggestions and offering ideas. The boys
did well also as they were receptive but just needed a bit more focus.

Room 11 - 2 Male, 1 Female -2 Year 7, 1 Year 8

In this class, there was very poor attendance from one of the males. When he was
there he was engaged and receptive to the teaching but was just not there enough.
The other two students were very receptive and made good strides forward in their
confidence and thinking independently.

Room 24 -3 Male -2 Year 7,1 Year 8

The two Year 7 students were very enthusiastic and gained a lot. They really
enjoyed the spelling and using the tiles. They were able to retain the information
that they were given, the Year 8 was more hesitant but was great and offered
suggestions when with me.

Room 32 - 1 Male, 2 Female - 3 Year 7

Finishing off from Term One. We recapped what we did and went over some of the
essentials before moving on with the rest of the programme. We spent more time
on adjectives as that was something that they needed for their narrative. All the
students were very enthusiastic and involved.

Room 29 - 2 Male, 1 Female - 3 Year 8

All three students are lovely students who get involved with the learning and want
to do well. They only had one session per week and were finished off in Term Four.
There was not great attendance with one of the males.

Overall - 20 Male, 8 Female - 18 Year 7, 10 Year 8.

Term Four

Room 13 -4 Female -4 Year 7

| started off with three females who were lovely and very receptive then | found out
one should have been at Hi Fliers so | took on another female. All of them were
fabulous, very receptive and wanted to learn, grew in confidence and were very
receptive to giving ideas and suggestions. Will really miss working with this group.




Room 34 -1 Male, 2 Female - 3 Year 7

Male is very low and struggles with key concepts and needs more focus and
direction. Two females are lovely and engaged and can see the growth in
confidence. They all want to learn and will provide examples and spell out words.

Room 69 - 3 Male - 3 Year 8

Finishing off from Term Two, to start with worked on the recap of the key things that
we had done before. One has quite poor attendance and another is not engaged in
school it is a struggle to get him into lessons but he will eventually engage most of
the time. One of them is great, fully involved and wants to learn. He listens well.
The one with bad absence is always engaged when present.

Room 22 - 2 Male -2 Year 7
Finishing off from Term Three, female left school. Working on key aspects within
their lessons, responding more positively and accepting the assistance.

Room 15 -3 Male -2 Year 7, 1 Year 8

Lovely and involved. All three males are lovely. They want to learn and get involved
with the lessons. They are becoming more confident in offering ideas and are
improving when it comes to recognising the sounds.

Room 20 - 2 Male, 1 Female - 3 Year 7

This is a lovely group they are all involved and want to improve. They have been
listening well, improving their spelling and looking at what they need to do in the
lessons with me to improve.

Room 12 -4 Female -2 Year 7. 2 Year 8

The girls are good and listen well to instructions and what needs to be done. They
are involved and want to improve. They work well with each other and look at ways
to improve. The Year 7s are more receptive and will be good to see how they
progress next year.

Room 29 - 2 Male, 1 Female - 3 Year 8
Finishing off from Term Three - great workers and listen and want to improve.
Using skills within lessons and asking great questions.

Overall - 13 Male, 12 Female, - 16 Year 7, 9 Year 8

Student Voice

LL - Feel more happier and confident with learning. Like doing the spelling and
coming up with my own sentences.

JA - | understand more and know what | need to be doing in class better.

RI - | am happier with my learning, like doing the spelling and feel good about the
work that have completed.

RT - | like doing the different things and stuff that we don't do in class. | like doing
the spelling too and feel more confident with them.

ST - More confident with the work that | do and like being in the small group.
Becoming more confident with the spellings.

GKM - | like the work and being able to be in a small group. Like the teacher. Feel
more confident in what | am doing and feel good with work as feel like | have
achieved something.




BM - | like everything about it. Kind and good teacher who teaches fun things. Feel
more confident in doing humanities work and also like the small group so that can
confidently share ideas. | like doing the spelling as | feel like achieving something
and learning the words at the end so know what is right.

ST - | like the spelling and being in a small group. More confident to share stuff and
ideas. Feel good afterwards.

TDT - 1 like the spelling and would like to do more spelling. | know more about
what doing in my Humanities lessons now.

TJ - | like that | am having fun and learning about stuff that | never learned in
primary school. | am learning about interesting words, what they mean and how to
spell them.




Highfliers Programme

The Highfliers Programme is made up of two components, the Quick60 Reading programme and the Spring
Into Math intervention. lavana Seuala has taken over from Tumii Poko following his retirement at the end of
Term Two.

The Highfliers programme is made up of fourteen students receiving ICS funding, four of the six students
receiving ORS funding and ten unfunded students who require the additional support the programme can
offer. Students are scheduled to attend Highfliers as a supplemented Literacy or Math lesson and are
grouped based on similar reading ability. This occurs up to three times a week with lower ability students
receiving more time and is consistent throughout the entire year. The programme offers not only additional
learning support but also provides an opportunity for students to generate friendships and socially interact
with other students. Mr Poko is incredibly good at fostering this culture in their groups.

Quick60 Overview

Quick60 is an evidence-based, explicitly taught reading programme. Each lesson has seven components
focusing on foundational reading skills with a consistent teaching format throughout the programme.
Emphasis is given to reading and spelling and each lesson provides for fluency practice, comprehension,
vocabulary instruction and writing. Subsequent lessons provide opportunities for revision and consolidation.

Spring into Math Overview

Spring into Math is an evidence-based approach to building the early skills required to be successful in
Math. The intervention is short and engaging utilising repetition, games and visual aids to ensure
permanence. The skills taught are counting forwards and backwards, skip counting, number recognition
and early basic facts.

Highfliers Feedback 2023

lavanna’s Feedback | 2023 has been another successful year for our beloved treasures. As the teacher
and facilitator of the programme, | have the honour of helping to get our kids to
where they need to be. | love my job so much and this programme is a massive
reason why. | play music to help engage them and often give them dance breaks to
break the ice. We play games and | also bring in my clothing so that our kids can
dress up and feel cool when doing their work etc. But the amazing improvements |
have seen and witnessed our treasures make are the most rewarding and satisfying
joy | have experienced. Every day | am excited to come to work and help make a
difference in our kids' lives, especially my beautiful treasures. As a teacher, your job
is to teach, educate and help our kids achieve their academic goals. But when
working at Manurewa Intermediate, you learn VERY quickly that it is much more
than that. We need to have the courage and heart to make our school a happy and
safe place for our kids and | can honestly say that Highfliers does just that.

The programme focuses on the ORS and ICS funded students with a few additional
unfunded students who despite being unfunded also need learning support. Their
needs are vast and targeted teaching is necessary by grouping them into their
various reading groups. This allows them to be comfortable and confident within
their small groups. In each group, we start our lesson doing our school
Whakamoemiti. We do this together as a way for our kids to connect with each other
on a deeper level than just learning. Though my job is to help them with their
learning, it has given me the opportunity to be more than just the ‘Facilitator’ of the
group. The kids look at me as an older brother, some even call me uncle. | want
Highfliers to be a safe space for our kids to grow in their learning and also feel at
home.




The main focus has been decoding, comprehension, vocabulary building and Spring
into Math. Decoding focuses on phonics and pronunciation and linking the two
together. This has been aided by the whole school-wide (AWS) Agility with Sound
programme. The blends, vowels and digraphs are so important for our foundation
learners. Comprehension both literal and inferential has been a target at all different
levels through questioning to help the students understand what they have read.
Dictation and Colorful Semantics also help with their sentence building, writing and
letter formation. | have also run Spring into Math activities when | have spare time at
the end of each session and the students have enjoyed it.

The students are aware that they are withdrawn from their own classes to come to
this programme and they look forward to coming to each session. The children have
developed relationships with their peer group at their own level. They feel
comfortable enough with each other to take risks and make mistakes. Some of the
children have formed friendships and meet in the playground. The children know
they are not alone and there are other children who need additional support with
their learning. Since my time in this role, | too have created such positive
relationships with all the different groups that attend Highfliers. The energy and
enthusiasm they show when excited about coming to Highfliers is so humbling yet
so fulfilling. Our Highfliers kids are such a joy to work with. They make teaching so
much more than what | thought it was when [ first started.

| can confidently say that every student who is part of Highfliers has made
outstanding progress. Both Year 7 and Year 8 students have improved throughout
the course of the year and it shows in their spelling, reading and oral language
results. | will miss my Year 8 students but | am excited to see how they will improve
and expand their learning in high school. As for my year 7 students, it is going to be
such a good 2024. | cannot wait to help them achieve their learning goals and create
many more fun memories. -







X.N. - Highfliers is very fun. | like to dress up as an Indian, Cop and Samoan while |
read and write.

Z.R. -1 like coming here because | feel better doing work here than in class.

T.M. - I wish | had done Highfliers last year because Mr SJ and my group are so
good to me and make me feel welcome. | hate reading but | am getting better.

K.A - Highfliers is funny. My group always mocks Mr SJ but we get the work done. If
we do not listen we have to run.

A.O. - This year is way better than last year because of my new group and the new
things Mr SJ did this year to help make it more fun and helpful.

D.W. - I was so scared before because | couldn't read but now | love it.

K.W. - | like dancing and playing games. Reading and writing are something | suck
at but being with SJ has made me better.

R.R. - Me and Khan love being here and learning new things. I like the music Mr SJ
plays and reads out loud.

K.W. - Highfliers has helped me heaps when | am in class. | have improved in my
reading and am the man at writing. Shot Mr SJ for your help!

R.F. - Mr SJ has been there for me since last year and made this year even better.
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CURRICULUM OBJECTIVES 2023

COOKING

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

To manage the modern technology in the new room
to provide equitable access and quality learning
experiences for our children.

This has been achieved well. The cooking teacher
and Learning Assistant make the technology easily
accessible to students to increase learning. A new
iPad has been purchased which has enhanced
program delivery. The Apple TVs are sometimes
problematic (i.e. unable to cast and need resetting
by Da Vi).

To develop systems, routines, organisation and
structure in the new food teaching space.

This has been fine-tuned throughout the year. Both
the teacher and Learning Assistant have rigorously
enforced routines. Some adjustments were made,
like relocating the microwaves for logistical
reasons.

To make use of the school gardens at the disposal
of the Foods room. Consistent use of these
resources will promote the usefulness of such a
resource (the gardens) in our school and
encourage its successful management, as well as
encourage students to emulate this resource (i.e. a
garden) at home.

This has happened somewhat haphazardly as the
classroom is distant from some of the gardens. This
means either sending students on their own or in
pairs to the garden or the teacher will collect it
before lessons.

The gardens are being re-planted by our
environmental teacher who will be working more
closely with the cooking teacher.

There have been discussions between the teacher
and Environmental teacher about ideal foods to be
planted etc.

To develop a culture where students are able to talk
about and use the skills and knowledge they learn
in Foods everywhere else.

This has remained a key focus throughout the year.
Some students take pleasure in using the accurate
terminology, while others find it challenging.

Always great to hear from families that students are
stepping up at home.

At both ‘Boy's Night Out’ and ‘Girl's Night In’ the
cooking room has been utilised for students and
parents to cook foods together

To put recipes and/or useful Information on the
school website, and some videos.

Last year students made a digital recipe book
because of the classroom structure. It has not been
incorporated this year because of the classroom
layout and more time spent cooking

As a school, we have been looking at what other
intermediate schools are doing and hope to finalise
this in time for next year.

To be involved
programme.

in providing an after school

There have been two Period 6 opportunities for
selected students. The cooking teacher worked
alongside our DP of Pastoral care and students on
Wednesday and Friday in Term 2.

370+




To develop the ‘cafe’ concept with the support of
the Cooking Teacher and Passion Pod Leader.

—

This has been hugely successful. Students have
worked at break times, usually on a roster, and
have tried all the different aspects of the cafe.

All food has been sold for $1. The food has often
been more popular than the hot chocolates (which
are sold for $2)

Although not designed to make a profit, there has
been a small profit.

There have been groups of staff and students using
the cafe for meetings and there is scope for this to
increase.

CULTURAL ENRICHMENT

OBJECTIVES

T

ANALYSIS

For all teachers to facilitate or be involved in a
Cultural Enrichment Group. They are engaged
with this group of students for Terms One and Two
or Three and Four, ensuring each group has an
engaging plan. The Period 6 material will involve a
year-long action plan of what will happen.

We have formed student groups based on common
interests and passions related to culture. Groups
have then appointed student leaders or co-leaders for
each group to ensure effective coordination and
engagement. Teachers plan based on the needs of
keeping performance techniques relevant and
engaging for all. This is reflective of ability levels
within the group so all students have an active part
and feel a sense of belonging. In some areas, this
could be done better.

Develop a diverse, engaging and inclusive
programme, which meets the needs of all children
who choose their Cultural Enrichment Group
equally, maintaining high standards which are
measured and obtainable.

We include a diverse range of cultural choices which
include activities, workshops, and experiences 1o
cater to the varied interests and backgrounds of our
students. We have also seen success by involving
students in the planning and design of various
groups’ programme, encouraging their input and
ideas.

To maintain the up-keep of costumes/uniforms and
musical instruments for the performing groups

We have built on our cultural costuming through
funding. These have been accessioned into our
uniform room where they are looked after for the
years ahead. This has been a two year project.

All  performing groups must fulfill the WMl

P.E.R.F.O.R.M acronym.

All groups refer to the PE.R.FORM Poster
acronym, which gives a consistent schoolwide
approach in the expectation of what is required.
Students are aware of this and can talk to it when
asked. It is also referred to at various assemblies
throughout the year in order to bring more exposure
to the ingredients needed for a strong performance.

Continue to develop and provide —more
opportunities for students to perform over and
above Erin Park (not only within the community).
Performances outside of the school must happen

We have continued to perform at Erin Park Rest
Home as well as some torah community based
locations with various groups. This has included our
Samoan, Kapa Haka and Hip Hop groups. The
absence of the MPA Diversity festival and the APPA




Msuic Festival saw us not being able to do our usual
performances here.

To implement a new Cultural Enrichment model to | This was effective from some students who needed
develop student interest and exposure to various | to change groups due to varying levels of
groups that contains depth and engagement. engagement half way through the year. The
consistency of others changing meant that it would
put everyone back to square-one. Exposure to other
groyus has come during Period 6 where students are
free to be part of another cultural group(s) where they
would like.

DIGI COMP

OBJECTIVES ANALYSIS

Create, edit and use algorithms, coding languages | The range of resources is good and updates
and a range of resources to achieve specific tasks. frequently - waiting on new tech to come in as old
gear needs to be replaced so we can stay relevant
and have items that allow students to practise digital
skills taught in class. Lack of devices did not enable
me to have 1:1 this year due to increased class sizes
for some rooms. Perhaps we can ensure this doesn'’t
happen in Digi-Comp. These devices are the MOST
used in the school with the entire student body using
them.

Use and express subject specific vocabulary The students demonstrate capability, and the key to
surrounding the usage of digital tools and literacy. reinforcing  their understanding s consistent
repetition. Integrating standard terminology into
regular classroom discussions helps maintain this
consistency. Remarkably, Year 8 students can recall
information from their Year 7 learning, and some
Year 7 students come to us with knowledge from
their Year 6 experience, indicating a positive
continuity and growing awareness from primary
levels

Show an understanding of how the design and use | This can be a focus for next year as time restraints
of digital systems can affect humans in both local did not allow for DIRECT teaching of this. However,
and global ways. there is a possibility to include some type of study of
digital systems in leading countries around the world.
Basic understanding helps students with design and
links to other subject areas that can complement this
if done with intention.

Complete independent and group tasks that show Definitely a positive for student learning and
personal choices in design elements, purpose and | engagement - ownership of task choices has been
inputs/outputs. positive and effective. Student choice is relevant to
learning and engagement whilst offering a structured
plan of tasks. This lets the students own their
learning but not overwhelm them.

L |




DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Ensure new staff induction includes helpful
information on Digital Infrastructure

o]

The Deputy Principal who oversees Digital
Infrastructure went over the systems and
processes at Induction with new staff as well as
a reminder for the whole staff during Staff Only
Week. These reminders included:

¢ Keeping devices tidy and looked after
Routines and expectations with students
How to hold/carry devices
What to do if there is an issue

e How to prevent issues from happening
Information slides were also shared with staff,
as a reference for the beginning of the year
routines but also available to use throughout the
year.

Monitor and maintain the use of Chromebooks
and Fujitsu laptops in classrooms by ensuring this
is reported on in an ongoing way

The use of the ICT Helpdesk, supports teachers
who have reported ongoing issues with their
devices

Our IT technician and leadership keep on top of
whats being damaged, what issues seem to be
re-occruing and in what rooms they are
occurring. We then deal with these accordingly
and in a timely manner.

| ensure to keep the Whanau Leaders in the
loop as well, so they know who may need
additional support in their whanau/team.
Majority of the staff are really good at looking
after their devices and both the IT technician
and leadership do random checks whenever we
are in and out of classrooms.

Ensure the upkeep and maintenance of digital
assets/hardware within our school are accounted
for in an ongoing way e.g. equipment repairs
and/or device failures

- lpads

- TV's and Projectors

- Sound systems

- Printers

- Cameras/Speakers

- Wifi/Network

- Telephones

Our IT technician completes a stocktake of
devices each term to ensure they are
maintained and kept in good condition

The Helpdesk has been split into Whanau
groups this year, so Whanau Leaders can easily
see who in their whanau has a lot of issues and
who they need to support

There have been a couple of HDMI issues at
the beginning of the year (noted on Helpdesk)
as staff are trying to fix a problem themselves
instead of using the systems we already have in
place. These have been dealt with and are no
longer an issue

Devices: An insurance claim was made at the
end of last year where some devices were
stolen and damaged. This has now been
rectified and devices were replaced

Ipads: These are still in circulation and will
continue to be until they die out. They currently
live in Science/X-Plo Tech classrooms and are
mainly used to take photos of student learning
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What does the data show about:

1. the level of non-attendance? (Low/moderate/high non-attendance)

Overall, 58% of students at Ml attend school regularly. The overall level of low attendance
which is below 70% attendance only affects 43 students or 5% of the student body. Based

on ministry numbers for 2024 and 2025 target figures, we are below these figures for each
of the given categories.

2. the groups of students most at risk? (Ethnicity, gender)
Based on the figures, it would suggest that our Maori students are most at risk, having the
lowest number of students attending at 90% or more at 55%. Maori also have the second
highest percentage of students attending below 70%. The breakdown of students most at
risk by gender is fairly even between male and females.

3. individual students of concern?

There is a group of students who struggle to attend school regularly. These students are
followed up daily by classroom teachers, the office receptionist, and Whanau Leaders.

What processes do we use to:

1. track student absence?

Manurewa Intermediate follows an attendance process which is a breakdown of steps for
follow up from over attendance operational plan. All student attendance is tracked by the
office, Poutoko Hapori, staff and whanau leaders. Data for this tracking is derived from our
school SMS EDGE system.

2. monitor student absence to identify target groups/students?

The DP Pastoral Care oversees all attendance at Manurewa Intermediate. This is done
through tracking through Edge as well as case by case tracking by Whanau Leaders. Targets
groups are identified through this and then followed up by the appropriate action ie. a
student who may be below 70% attendance will have had home visits, whanau hui, and
Poutoko Hapori intervention etc.

3. respond to student absence — daily, weekly, termly?
The Manurewa Intermediate flow chart covers how attendance is responded to daily and

weekly. Ongoing student absence over the term or longer involves multiple individuals and
or outside agencies such as OT, Truancy Services, Whanau Hui, Home Visits by WL etc.






3. How often is schoolwide attendance data reviewed?

Daily
4. What types of schoolwide attendance data are reviewed?

Daily, moderate and chronic are monitored day by day through our attendance
process. Any students who have moderate and chronic absenteeism are followed up
by Whanau Leaders, DP: Pastoral Care, Poutoko Hapori and in extreme cases the

Principal.

Strategies, actions, and outcomes

What use is made of our school attendance data:

1. by teachers?

Teachers use attendance data to monitor their own class attendance and share any
concerns related to this with the Whanau Leader and if appropriate DP:PC. it is also used to
reward students who attend regularly through the ‘Commitment to Education” whanau
system and term and year attendance whereby a student goes into the draw to win a laptop
and tuckshop voucher.

2. by the pastoral team/leaders

Pastoral Care team led by the DP:PC uses attendance data to track students for our whanau
rewards system as well as students who have attendance issues. Chronic attendance issues
will result in a referral to OT under SECTION 19, all other attendance concerns are dealt with
by Manurewa Int staff through whanau hui, home visits, counselling (if appropriate),
Poutoko Hapori engagement etc.

3. by senior leadership?
As stated previously, the DP:PC oversees all attendance and attendance issues at Manurewa
Intermediate, however all of leaderships are involved in the active tracking and following up

of attendance through our attendance process.

4. By school board members?

Attendance data is collated monthly for the Board to review. Any concerns are passed onto
the Leadership team for immediate action.

What strategies have we implemented to address attendance concerns and
what has been the impact of these strategies:




1. forindividual students?

Following our attendance process, the office reception calls all absent students on Day 1 of
non attendance. This is followed up by the classroom teacher and if necessary a DP.
Appropriate action is then taken by staff depending on case by case situation. These actions
have been listed before such as whanau hui, Poutoko Hapori engagement, home visits etc.
These methods are obviously very impactful as there is immediate follow up from the school
especially for our difficult to engage whanau.

2. For groups of students?

The school has implemented multiple strategies to address attendance concerns, these
include: the attendance follow up process, commitment to education, rewards for term and
year long full attendance. Through these methods Manurewa Intermediate has consistently
maintained attendance rates of close to or over 90% for over 920 students.

7. How does the school involve parents and whéanau in strategies to improve student
attendance? What are the outcomes?

Manurewa Intermediate prides itself in involving family around any issues concerning
absenteeism for their child. This is done through home visits and whanau hui. Families are
able to communicate what they are struggling with and how we can best support them in
getting their child to school regularly.

8. Which external agencies and services does the school access to provide wraparound
support for students to improve attendance? (Identify specific services.) What are the
outcomes?

Specific external agencies that Manurewa Intermediate uses to improve student attendance
are the Manurewa Attendance Service and Oranga Tamariki. There have been cases where a
student has not been attending due to other issues and support from Whiranaki and or the
Police has helped in getting these students back to school.

9. What measures does the school take to support students to catch up on learning
following absence? How effective are these measures?

Teachers are aware and do differentiate their lessons to support individual students, this is
inclusive of students who have been absent and need extra support to catch up on any
learning that has been missed.









Introduction

The following report provides an analysis of prevailing behavioural issues within our school,
covering both minor and major concerns affecting both male and female students. The
analysis encompasses incidents of social media drama, violations of the vaping policy,
lateness and class skipping, minimal physical altercations, and disruptive and anti-social
behaviour. Additionally, this report highlights the efforts made through whanau hui held
on-site to address these issues.

Minor Behaviour Issues

Social Media Drama:

The continual effects of social media drama among female students has had significant
implications for our overall school environment. This phenomenon is often fueled by the
popularity of platforms like Instagram and TikTok, where students create pages, posts or group
chats with the intention of humiliating others. The consequences of such behaviour has
caused tensions, disturbances and negative effects on students’ mental health and
well-being.

Lateness and Skipping Class:

Students arriving late to class and attempting to skip classes have become recent issues. This
behaviour disrupts the learning environment and affects the academic progress of the
students involved.

Disruptive Behaviour:

Instances of disruptive behaviour have been noted. This includes students displaying
behaviour that may be indicative of challenges faced outside the school environment.

Major Behaviour Issues

Vaping Policy Violations:

Violations of the school's vaping policy have resulted in stand downs for several students.
Female students, in particular, have been identified as a higher-risk group in terms of
vaping-related incidents.



Physical Altercations:

The occurrence of physical fights within the school premises has been minimal. However, we
remain vigilant to prevent any escalation of such incidents and are committed to maintaining
a safe environment for all.

Anti-Social Behaviour:
Anti-social behaviour has emerged as a significant concern, possibly influenced by various
factors, including the post-COVID environment. This behaviour negatively impacts the overall

school culture and requires comprehensive intervention strategies.
Intervention Strategies

Whanau Hui:

To address these behavioural concerns, whanau hui have been organised onsite. These family
meetings aim to involve parents, caregivers in understanding and resolving the issues
affecting their children.

Exclusions:
This year we had one female student go before the Board for continuous disobedience

(physiool altercations) which resulted in an exclusion.

Stand Downs:

This year, a total of 33 stand downs were recorded in our school. Out of these incidents, 23
(approximately 69.7%) were attributed to vaping-related issues, while the remaining 10
incidents (approximately 30.3%) were a result of physical altercations.

Notably, within the vaping-related stand downs, 15 incidents (approximately 65.2% of vaping
incidents) involved female students. This gender-specific breakdown provides valuable
insight into the distribution of vaping-related incidents among our student population.

The high percentage of stand downs related to vaping raises concerns about the frequency of
this behaviour within our school community. Addressing this issue may require targeted
awareness campaigns, and support systems to discourage vaping and promote healthier

alternatives. This is something that our Pastoral Care Council can look into for 2024.



Op Room:
The Op Room served as a critical space, accommodating a total of 463 occupants over the

course of the year. This figure includes both unique individuals and repeat offenders. Vaping
incidents (before the new Vaping Policy was put into effect) and physical altercations were
the common themes amongst offenders.

Counseling and Support Services:

Increased access to counseling and support services has been made available to students
facing challenges. This includes providing a safe space for students to express their concerns
and receive guidance on appropriate coping mechanisms.

Future Focus

Utilisation of MUSAC Edge:
In 2024, our school will shift to MUSAC Edge as the primary tool for recording behavioural

incidents, enhancing our ability to systematically gather and analyse data. This initiative
aims to uncover patterns, trends, and insights to address behavioural issues more
effectively.

The behavioural report underscores the importance of proactive measures and targeted
interventions to address both minor and major behavioural issues within our school. The
transition to MUSAC Edge in 2024 reflects a commitment to continuous improvement and a
forward-looking approach to behavioural management.

Example; Throughout Term 4 of this year, Rimu teachers used this system to record all
behavioural incidents.
























3. Working Together:
Schools, kura, early childhood education (ECE) me nga k6hanga reo, Kahui Ako, specialists, RTLB
and other providers (e.g. alternative education) work together to identify needs across their
community, and make decisions on how best to use available resources. Like-needs can be
identified and better decisions made for a range of different results for learners. By working together,
learners are better supported, learning support needs can be addressed early, learning
environments improved and transitions better supported.

Fortnightly LSC meetings and weekly Guidance and Support meetings (involving DP/SENCo,
DP/Pastoral Care LSCs, RTLB, and MoE) provide regular platforms to discuss children requiring
learning and/or behavioural support. These discussions enable all professionals involved fto
collaboratively make decisions and plan the way forward for these students. This may involve
referrals to agencies and/or transition support. Transition has been discussed and information
required by intermediate and high schools highlighted. The transition process was reviewed by the
LSC and RTLB Clusters resulting in refining the systems in the 2022/2023 process. Transition is an
area that will continue to be reviewed.

4. More Flexibility
More flexibility ensures that specialists and decision-makers have the ability to make decisions
about the best learning support for that child or young person, rather than relying on rules-based
access to support. Local specialists and decision-makers use their judgment and knowledge of the
learner to tailor learning support.

Currently, the panel discussions involve MoE, LSCs and SENCo and have not yet included outside
agencies and/or specialists. However, general discussions have resulted in the MoE facilitator and
RTLB Cluster Manager being able to provide assistance in a timely manner thereby lowering
barriers for support.

5. Better Facilitation
A designated facilitator convenes local learning support service providers and connects to wider
social services. The purpose is to ensure local coordination and cooperation to support collaborative
practice and improve efficiency and the effective use of resources.

The Ministry of Education Team Leader, Debbie Law is the LSC Cluster Kaahui Ako O Manurewa
facilitator. She facilitates weekly LSC meetings, attended by Kaahui Ako O Manurewa LSCs,
SENCos and Manurewa Intermediate Principal lain Taylor.

Debbie organised speakers to talk to the LSC Cluster on topics that LSC have identified as a need
across the Kaahui Ako. The Cluster LSCs also compiled PLD suggestions and these were worked
through at the fortnightly meetings with LSC providing their own PLD. This PLD has included
NumPa maths assessment, SPRING into Maths intervention, BURT and PROBE testing as well as
Patch Play and Casey Caterpillar interventions.

The panel discussions of students of interest, brought by LSCs, have provided an opportunity to
gather suggestions re possible supports and/or referrals for students and their whanau from an
experienced team. Best options for the way forward for the student were then considered by the
LSC who presented the case.

These meetings also provided a forum for discussion around the learning priorities identified in the
Learning Support Action Plan e.g. flexible supports and Services for Neuro-diverse children and
young people.



6. Sharing Data

Schools and ECE services share data and information on learning support needs and services to
build a clear picture of the strengths and priorities of local learners.

Information sharing has continued to strengthen the new delivery model, with appropriate steps
having already been taken with the principals of the schools in Kaahui Ako O Manurewa having
agreed on and signed the Memorandum of Agreement. This agreement has been set up to protect
the security and privacy of student information but allows for the sharing of student information re:
transition of students between schools, kura, early childhood education (ECE) me nga k6hanga reo,
and Kahui Ako.

L SCs and SENCo discussed data collection and use this year and as a result, the transition system
has been streamlined. Additionally, each LSC has established a temporary learning support register
for their school, using clear, online information systems and language consistent with that across the
Kaahui Ako. This information will be transferred to the Ministry version if it becomes available.

Area of LSC Focus 2023

What LSC has done at Manurewa Intermediate

Supporting teachers and
students through building
an inclusive school or
kura and cluster
environment where all
students participate,
progress and make
successful transitions.

The LSC has continued to support the development of an inclusive
environment (through ongoing conversations) based on the principles of
Universal Design for Learning. The intention is for teachers to have a
common understanding of how to best meet the needs of all students in
their classrooms.
LSC has:
e supported teachers with observations and assessments to be
able to identify areas of support needed
e provided students and teachers with evidence-based strategies,
practices and guidance about what will make a difference for their
students
e worked with the learning assistants to develop capability through
training and professional development
e worked with local secondary schools to implement the transition
pathway for those students who will benefit from this support
e Met with lines of teachers during Speed Dating sessions to
discuss neurodiverse students.

Kaahui Ako

As part of the Learning Support Cluster of the Kaahui Ako O Manurewa the
LSC has:
e built relationships with contributing agencies - Social Workers,
Ministry of Education, Resource Teachers (RTLB), etc.
e embedded culture of collaboration between the LSC and SENCo
where different approaches are shared
e hosted fortnightly meetings at Manurewa Intermediate that
included:

o discussion of cases brought to the LSC and SENCo panel
for suggestions as to next steps for referrals, learning
interventions, MoE support and other agency referrals

o transition support for Year 6 students coming to Ml in
2024 and Year 8 moving to high school in 2024.




o identification of the importance of, and adherence to, a
common language for the Ministry Learning Support
Register (LSR) across the Kaahui Ako
Panel discussions re students of concern
Trauma Informed Practice - sharing of practical hands on
resources

o Representative from OT sharing information about their
systems and procedures

The LSC has worked alongside the SENCo to update our Learning Support
Register (LSR) in which the relevant details of students identified as
requiring learning support at Manurewa Intermediate are recorded.
This year approximately 185 students at Manurewa Intermediate have
been identified as one or more of the following:
e well below their expected learning levels as identified by school
wide assessments, classroom teachers and students receiving
ICS support
e ESOL funded or are receiving specialist ESOL support
¢ students with identified behaviour, medical/ health, social needs
e ORS funded
Not all students will need individual attention but are ‘on the radar’ should
more individualised support be required.
There has been an update from MoE regarding the development or
implementation of Te Rito. Te Rito is up and running but there is no longer a
standardised Learning Support Register on the platform but it will allow
SMS to connect with Te Rito and student information can be transferred.

Learning Support
Register
(Te Rito)
Individual Education

Plans/One Plans
follow up work

and

The LSC organised eighteen individual educational plan (IEP) meetings in
Term 2 and twenty IEPs in Term 4 for the students, their whanau, form
teachers, humanities teachers, Highfliers teacher and RTLB when
applicable. These IEPs were written to ensure students receiving ICS
funding (In-class Support) and ORS (Ongoing Resourcing Scheme) funding
had targeted individualised learning plans to meet their learning needs.
These plans were written collaboratively with the student, their parents/
whanau (who were all invited to attend) and their humanities, form and
math teachers. This year the SENCo convened the |IEP meetings in Term 2
due to me just filling the LSC role. All students were assessed by the LSC
using Burt Word Reading assessment, PROBE or PM Benchmarks,
NumPa (Math), e-asTTle for writing and McCarthy and Kirk Assessment for
Oral Language to gain baseline data.

IEPs were completed for:

o 15 ICS funded students in Term 2 and 16 students in Term 4
(the school received notification during the year of one year
8 student who was on the waiting list had been successful).

o 3 ORS funded students in Term 2 and 4 students in Term 4
(1 student had an ORS application approved during the
year)




IEP follow up work involved:

e sharing the completed IEPs with teachers, SENCo and whanau
(mailing to whanau when email was not possible)

e convening meetings with secondary schools to assist
parents/caregivers to select appropriate secondary schooling for
2024

e following up on previous RTLB referrals and reports

e checking in with parents/ whanau unable to attend IEP meetings.
Sending text reminders of date and time of IEP meetings

e identifying possible RTLB referrals and completing students
details and sharing with SENCO to upload on the database

e Home visits to ensure RTLB referral forms are signed by parents/
whanau

e BAS referral for one student. Supporting and working alongside
the translator and parents during the assessment and reporting
process

e referring students to the Mana Clinic and ensuring that they are
taking their antibiotics or other medication

e providing transition support for students going to high school in
2024 including meetings with SENCo of Manurewa High School
and James Cook High School and individual visits with whanau
ahead of general school visits

e supporting our bilingual parents to complete high school
enroliment forms for 2024

e Creating resources for parents to support their child at home

e Regular check ins with teachers, students and whanau

Referrals to
and Support

Guidance

The profile of the LSC within the school has remained high. Teachers are
aware of the work the LSC does and the number of learning referrals
continues to increase.

A SnapShot of general ability across the curriculum is completed following
a referral to the Guidance and Support team and allocation to the LSC.
During the SnapShot process, student behaviours are observed and the
student's voice gathered to develop an understanding of the student as a
young person and a learner.

SnapShots
Terms 2 and 3:
e Twenty four Snapshots completed, line of teacher meetings held,
and necessary follow up actioned by teachers, LSC and/or
external agencies.

Dyslexic Screening
Terms 2 and 3:

e FEleven students were screened and the diagnostic report showed
that nine students were dyslexic. Reports were shared and a line of
teacher meetings were held.

e Reports were discussed with parents and strategies shared on how
to support their child at home.




e Open-dyslexic font is trialed with students to help with their reading
and accessing the curriculum.

Referrals to  outside | The LSC has completed or is in the process of completing or assisting in
agencies the referrals for

e RTLB support

e MoE support eg Speech Language assessment

o Assistive Technology

o BAS assessment

o ORS application
Individual and Small | The LSC has supported the implementation of SPRING into Math, Quick60

group interventions

Reading and Colourful Semantics, Sunshine Online, Epic, Learning Village
and Numicon programmes.
This involved:
e Quick60: providing ongoing support
e SPRING into Math: ongoing in class support
e Colourful Semantics: training ESOL teachers and new LAs in the
implementation of this and creating individual resources for each
one
e Sunshine Online and Epic - in class support for students who are
not funded
e AWS: refresher with the LAs.
e Learning Village: received funding from RTLB + organised weekly
PLD sessions for our ESOL teachers
e Numicon: supporting the LA

Assessment kete

The LSC has used evidence-based assessments to ensure consistency in
baseline data, identification of learning support required by students, and
monitoring of student learning progress.
This involved:
e supporting teachers to use and analyse PM Benchmarks and
PROBE
e supporting ESOL learning assistant to administer and analysing
PROBE running records
e training and supporting learning assistant to use the SunShine
on-line reading and math resources when working with individual
or small groups
e Supporting the ESOL teacher and LA with Learning Village

Relationship building with
parents and whanau

The LSC has supported parents / whanau to develop an understanding of
the learning support processes available.
This has included:
e meeting with whanau before or after teacher SIC times to develop
relationships.
e explaining application processes (Ministry of Education referrals,
RTLB, etc.)
e explaining the information and ramifications of various agency
reports received, to whanau.




e convening and supporting whanau transition visits to schools and
convening and attending meetings with whanau and SENCo of
high schools

¢ supporting whanau when meeting with social workers and other
agency personnel.

e ensuring whanau are included in IEP meetings to enable agency
in their child’s learning and key competency goals.

e providing relevant support and guidance to whanau on the use of
suitable resources and strategies to support their child’s learning.

e Organising and attending meetings for some of our 2024 Year 7
students who require additional transition visits.

Working with the School
Leadership Team to
ensure identified students
receive the appropriate
support to enhance their
learning and progress.

The LSC has discussed learning support related issues with Leadership
including:
¢ in conjunction with DP: Guidance and Support:
o updating of the Learning Support Register to record
relevant data and add new students
o regular discussions of guidance and support issues as
they arise
e preparation for, and attendance at weekly Guidance and Support
meetings.
e attendance at regular Gifted and Talented team meetings
e attendance at regular Whanau and Passion Pod meetings




Kura Reo

Students who are new learners of English, or coming into an English-medium environment for the
first time need explicit and extensive teaching of English vocabulary, word forms, sentence and
text structures, and language uses.

Each session of the ESOL programme includes:

e an oral language component of listening and speaking, using a range of games and
activities.

e a reading component composed of shared reading texts, followed by related
comprehension and word activities. As AWS is used in their weekly humanities classes,
Allison and Litarina follow on from using the skills gained in small but effective group
activities.

e a writing component of formulating sentences orally, using images, followed by creating
sentences using related /individual/group brainstorms. Students write their own
sentences when they are able to do so.

~ ESOL Feedback

Allison Feedback There are 96 students involved in the ESOL programme this year.

e 41 Year 7's and 55 Year 8’s

e 34 females and 62 males

e Fijian Indian 33. Samoan 17, Filipino 12, Tongan 8.
Malaysian 6, Vietnamese 6, Kiribati 5, Fijian 4. Cook lsland
1, Nepalese 1, Italian 1. Maori 1. Persian 1. African 1.
Assyrian 1.

‘For everything there is a season’

This year has been one of both professional growth and experimental
success. Having completed a full four terms in this programme
(ESOL, Kura Reo) it is apparent to me that | have done an amazing
job.

There are so many ways to offer students a [earing experience they
will remember, or that they will enjoy while engaging in these lessons.
The real blessing is that | have enjoyed every moment in the
classroom because the ESOL program is every teacher’s dream job.

Having the flexibility to create lessons out of a simple idea from a
student's imagination or observing a misconception and building a
plan of how to offer another perspective in small but beneficial ways
is very rewarding....not just for me but every student who comes
through my door.




Being involved in the background administrative aspects of school life
has been an empowering yet humbling experience. Attending
collaborative guidance and support meetings, meeting external
agency representatives as well as attending ESOL cluster meetings
later on this year were not something | was expecting to be involved
in as part of my role. Yet, again these added to my already ‘full cup’

| have probe tested my learners at three separate intervals this year.
At the beginning of the year all year 7 and new year 8 students, who
fit into the criteria for funding were tested. Year 8 students involved in
ESOL from last year were retested. The MoE ELLP record of
progress for all the students was then completed. The collection and
collation process, though quite time consuming, was interesting and
beneficial for my year to come.

By the end of term 2, our program had increased by 16 students and
with that increase came the implementation of a full time ESOL
learning assistant. Term 3 also saw a jump in numbers as well as 2
non-speaking Vietnamese students who required one-to-one
instruction, in class support as well and small focussed group
learning opportunities. Our student numbers in each session
increased, as did our determination to deliver a top class program.

The emphasis of the programme was on Listening and speaking.
Reading and Writing. When reflecting on our week during moderation
meetings, Litarina and | were able to discuss in depth the benefits
and work ons for the lessons we delivered to groups and individuals.
During these professional discussions we also had the opportunity to
forward plan for the weeks to come. The lessons planned were based
on our overall teacher judgement, obvious gaps in student
understanding and Te Ao Tangata term overviews.

My personal and professional gains this year have been immense.
There is a deep gratitude and appreciation for the opportunity to be
able to commit my time and energy to a profession | love with such a
supportive and dedicated team. Thank you Litarina, lain, Dan, Ben
and Nirvana.

Litarina Feedback

Working in ESOL has been an exciting opportunity met with a smooth
transition, thanks to Bruce and Allie. | have been able to explore this
role in a short amount of time and it is rewarding. | built good
relationships with some of these students prior to this role so my
challenges came from confidence in myself to run sessions and with
those who knew littie English. Happy to say | am proactive on both
and try different things if something doesn’t work.




Lesson plans are done by Allie and are always discussed before and
during the week. We have a moderation period in place to complete
reflections, discuss groups and 101s, work ons for the following week
and lesson ideas. | look forward to this period as it allows me to
offload and acknowledge our progress.

| learned how to do ELLP and probes earlier before needed so | had
a fair idea of how to steer lessons to support the learning outcomes
for students e.g comprehension, punctuation, brainstorming before
writing a story.

| look forward to upskilling as | know we'll be getting a complex bunch
next year. | appreciate continuous support from our team.

Student analysis
Allison

AV (M) Rm09

PROBE: 5-6y

AV has developed a slow but steady tolerance for learning in the
ESOL program this year. With a hesitant start to a new environment
both in Manurewa Intermediate and Aotearoa, New Zealand, he has
developed his confidence to now share his experiences and opinions
which add value to our learning as a group.

DP (M) Rm27

PROBE: 7-8y

DP has developed a keen attitude, which is very rewarding
considering the negative mindset he arrived with in term 1. He now
arrives at room 21 without prompting and contributes to
conversations when the topic is something he is familiar with. DPs
reading age has increased by one year, which is amazing progress.

CL (F) Rm11

PROBE 5-6y

A consistently open and confident conversationalist, CL contributes to
any discussion both within small groups and one to one. Her attitude
is positive and she enjoys coming to ESOL for her weekly session.
It's been pleasing to see CL improve in her writing as this was part of
her learning that she least engaged with.

IG (M) Rm75

PROBE 5-6y

IG has been a great student this year. He has shown gradual
progress in his learning taking the required steps to develop his
understanding. He is a slow processor and takes time to put things
together, but his attitude is second to none. He is always willing to
learn and will ask questions if he needs help.

GD (F) Rm27

PROBE 7.5-8.5y

With such a quiet nature GD took some time to come out of her shell
and get involved in any group activities. Once she was comfortable
with her timetabled group, she picked and chose the times to offer




her understanding. With some time and persistence, GD is now
confident to share her opinion. This persistence has paid off and
shows in the increase in her reading age by half a year to 7.5-8.5.

SB (M) Rm13

PROBE 6.5-7.5y

SB took a while to open up to the ESOL teaching and learning
programme. He was not willing to engage with other students and his
go to mechanism for avoidance was ‘I don't understand’. In term 3
however, once he was well settled and feeling very confident he
understood well and his progress began. SB has made slow progress

for this reason.

PM (F) Rm30

PROBE 8-9y

PM has been a pleasure to teach this year. She is the epitome of
friendly and inclusiveness of everyone she comes into contact with.
For that reason PM has been the ‘glue’ for her classmates ensuring a
settled lesson every time. PM has made steady progress which
shows in the confidence she has developed through the year.

MG (M) Rm34

PROBE 7-8y

MG always has a smile on his face and a positive, ‘can do attitude’ to
share. When working on tasks, MG will try every strategy he knows to
work things out on his own before asking for help. Because of his
hard working nature he has made great progress, especially in
reading where he has gone up one reading age to 7.0. It has truly
been wonderful to have MG in ESOL this year.

AN (M) Rm30

PROBE 7.5-8.5

After a rough start, AN developed in confidence and an appreciation
for ESOL. He has had a roller coaster of an experience this year with
his reading age proposing between 7-8.5 years. His oral skills have
markedly improved, which is evident during warm up speaking
activities like ‘sentence starters’ and ‘random yarns’.

JR (M) Rm33

PROBE 6.5-7.5

It was always interesting to see what kind of mood JR arrived with to
our ESOL sessions. On days when he came ready to learn, we were
able to get some seriously engaging and reflective work completed.
On the other days, attempting to write a sentence was hard work, this
is where he struggled. His oral skills have also improved during the
year making him quite the chatterbox.

MV (M) Rm69

PROBE 8-9y

MV has been a joy to have in the ESOL programme this year. His
eager attitude toward his learning, especially in terms 1 and 2 was
unmatched in his group, he was a standout. A natural orator, MV
always had a lot to say, not always about the topic we were studying




either. He has gone up one reading age in the course of the year,

MT (F) R70

PROBE 8-9y

An avid learner, MT consistently arrives at ESOL with a positive and
engaged attitude. Her eager personality has come through in her
PROBE results climbing two reading ages to 8y. With a natural ‘neat
and tidy’ demeanour, this characteristic has carried across to her
work presentation. A very quiet girl, MT has developed the
confidence to ask questions, voice her opinion and volunteer herself
for extracurricular activities like nature club.

TN (F) R27

PROBE 8.5-9.5y

TN has a feisty attitude which is very refreshing. A natural leader, she
attracts other members of her group, particularly the girls into her
unofficial social circle. TN uses her outspoken ‘take no prisoners’
attitude to voice her and sometimes the other girls' opinions. After a
stagnant first half of the year, TN has improved by one year for her
reading age to 8.5-9.5 years.

MN (F) R30

PROBE 10.5-11.5y

It has been a delight teaching MN this year. She is friendly and
courteous towards everyone in the classroom. MN has an eager and
mature attitude towards her, and her classmates' achievements
meaning if they are stuck in any way, she will help them, sometimes
without their permission. MN has gone up one and a half reading
ages this year to 10.5-11.5. Amazing progress across the board
which is attested to her ‘can do’ attitude and determination to
succeed.

VT (M) Rm33

PROBE 12.5-13.5y

VT has a determined attitude towards his learning and has been a
real pleasure to have in ESOL this year. Using strategies he is
familiar with, VD decodes every situation to the point you can see the
processing happening behind his eyes. With an amazing two reading
age improvement this year, his achievement is absolutely attested to
his positive attitude and no nonsense demeanour.

MK (F) Rm09

PROBE 9.5-10.5y

It was a joy having MK in ESOL this year. Her bright and positive
attitude towards her learning was very refreshing and often lifted the
mood of the whole group. MK though shy at times put in a lot of effort
towards her learning which shows by the 1.5 reading level increase
she has achieved.

LV (F) Rm70

PROBE 10.5-11.5y

With a loud and unapologetic personality, LV was a great asset to our
programme this year. An outsider to our group would think that no




work was being done because of the amount of noise coming from
our classroom, but that was LVs way of working through her learning.
She has increased her reading age by 1.5 years which is a testament
to her hard working determined nature.

BR (M) Rm34

PROBE 5.5-6.5y

BR is the epitome of our school vision and values. He is an
adventurous risk taker who directs his focus to leaming JP has been
a funny personality to have had in ESOL. He is always willing to talk
and share his experiences from his time with family or just what
happens in school. He shows a positive attitude and pushes himself
to be the best that he can be.

LF (M) Rm30

PROBE 6.5-7.5y

At first, | was unsure about how to motivate LF to stay on task as he
tends to be distracting to himself and others. As a coping mechanism
for not understanding the instructions or task at all, he would revert to
being the ‘class clown’. Once we were able to identify his triggers
and put processes in place, LF was able to move at his own place
and his learning journey really began. He has progressed by 1.5
reading age which is a great achievement.

KC (F) Rm70

PROBE 7.5-8.5y

KC is a very reserved student. A barrier that we faced from the start
was her having the confidence to speak in front of people or to share
her opinion about anything at all. With some time and reassurance,
KC is beginning to open up bit by bit. She is able to share with one
person at a time comfortably. KC has progressed one reading age
this year to 7.5.

Student analysis
Litarina

MT (M) R20

PROBE 5.0-6.0y

It has been a challenging ride with MT as English is limited. Since I've
had 101’s with him, he has slowly opened up. His testing went from 0
to 2/6 questions answered correctly and could read English this time
around. A work in progress but responds well to colourful semantics
and talks a bit more when around classroom peers and 101 sessions.
With continuous practice to speak out aloud, he will definitely pick up
more confidence.

DG (M) R4

PROBE 10.5-11.5y

DG always participates in all sessions and is comfortable with his
peer group. His reading level should be higher but was absent to
retest in time. He sets a good reading pace for himself and is
confident with this and comprehension. He is one of the students |
enjoy having in our sessions and is a team player for anything we




have planned to do.

AK (M) R4

PROBE 10.0-11.0y

AK is a quiet achiever who shows competence with written and
verbal language. He showed confidence when being tested although
the results weren’t quite there but with more practise, he’ll achieve
better.

MB (M) R12

PROBE 11.0-12.0y

MB has a huge personality that | enjoy in our sessions. He is
outspoken and helps out with another student who is Vietnamese. He
never fails to ask when in doubt and contributes to all sessions
whether he makes errors. He also chats a lot and | use him as an
example for clear and confident speaking. He’s a good vibe overall.

EF (M) R79

PROBE 10.0-11.0y

EF is a returning student who, although quiet, can confidently read,
comprehend and ask questions. He sparks up conversations with me
and always contributes to our sessions. He likes to think outside the
box and gives encouragement to those he works with.

AL (M) R73

PROBE 10.5-11.5y

AL has a quiet nature but pays attention to the work set for the group.
The most I've heard him speak was for testing and is doing alright.
With more encouragement and opportunity to speak out aloud,
confidence will build more. I'm looking forward to this day.

AC (M) R26

PROBE 10.0-11.0y

AC is another funny personality who likes to chat about life when we
have time to spare. His writing skills still need work but over time,
he'll get the hang of it e.g. punctuation. He has a good reading pace
and at times, his confidence comes off as smug. Looking forward to
improvements next year for him.

RE (F) R12

PROBE 11.5-12.5y

RE is a smart student who can read and comprehend well. She is
talkative and contributes to the group when she’s with us and knows
her classroom peers well. She has a can-do attitude and makes
conversations with me. Writing skills are on its way to greater things




and | look forward to this.

IG (M) R75

PROBE 5.0-6.0y

IG has a habit of overtalking but | find this alright to do when the time
is right. It feels like he needs the space to do it so | give him random
topics to ponder on that are related to our topic for the week.
Although being talkative, he still needs a gentle push in the right
direction for comprehension, a warm up for writing to get the ball
rolling and reading practice. A great student but needs a few things to
get him going.

DP (F) R3

PROBE 7.5-8,5y

DP is a smart student who is full of optimism and likes to chat often.
She likes to make sure everyone participates and doesn’t struggle.
Although her reading age is low, she definitely shows positivity in our
sessions.

PB (M) R75

PROBE 10.0y

PB has come a long way in terms of self esteem and confidence. His
ELLP score of 13 shows his competence although his reading level is
lower. He is a bright student who has changed his mindset to enjoy
and participate in every session. He is much quieter than the rest but
leads his group when asked to break off into groups. | look forward to
seeing him excel in the next few years.

DV (M) R28

PROBE 10.5y

DV is a polite student who makes the most of our sessions and turns
up with a big smile. He isn’t loud but contributes towards the group.
He's a good reader, writing is getting there, friendly and tries his best.
| enjoy how he thinks differently so | try to encourage him in the right
direction. He has good comprehension and is promising to excel in
the years to come.

SC (M) R34

PROBE 8.0-8.5y

SC is a chatty student with a big personality who enjoys coming
through. He interacts with most of our group and is confident to ask
questions, suggest ideas and spark conversations with me. He still
needs work with comprehension and writing but | am confident that
he will try his best at his next school.




MC (F) R28

PROBE 9.0-9.5y

MC is a friendly student who doesn't hesitate to help others in her
group and tries her best to complete the work. Her ELLP score has
dropped from 10 to 9 as | feel she needs improvement.
Comprehension is good and a lot of self correction while being tested
but she’s in a good place to improve.

HT (F) R14

PROBE 6.0y

HT’s confidence has grown over time and | am excited to see her do
well in the future. Attendance prolonged her progress but has shown
signs of improvement here and there. She’s much more talkative and
open compared to when | met her earlier in the year. Still needs work
on comprehension but is more confident with reading.

KU (F) R14

PROBE 6.0-6.5y

KU is fun to have around but needs a lot of work for reading,
speaking and comprehension. Unsure if she has other barriers that
stop her from progressing. She’s a good help when required but
hopeful she finds her groove soon and runs with it.

AA (F) R19

PROBE 10.0y

AA reads at a slow pace but reads well. Although her accent is
strong, she manages to push through it for proper pronunciation.
Comprehension is ok but if she has the same support next year, she'll
fly through and become more confident.

JM (M) R19

PROBE 12.0y

JM is a bright student who enjoys being with his group and reads
very well. He stutters while reading but it doesn’t affect his flow and
comprehension. His comprehension while testing was very good,
answering straight away and confidently. He understands the tasks
given and completes them. Looking forward to seeing him open up
more.

AT (F) R78

PROBE 9,5-10.5y

AT is talkative and is open with tasks presented to the group. She
gets stuck in the work and influences her mate who has also become
good at self managing. She uses punctuation marks well when
writing and reading and has an uplifting attitude in the group.




AN (F) R34

PROBE 8.0-9.0y

AN brings positive energy to the group and is a pleasure to have. She
contributes to tasks and discussions, asks questions to clarify work
and has shown progress. | am confident she will do well in future as
she also shows initiative with us.

Student feedback
Allison

AN: Kura Reo makes me feel very happy. | like the way Miss
Allie/Miss Rina teaches us they are very kind. | look forward to Kura
Reo because [ look forward to coming.

JS: Kura Reo makes me feel great. | like the way Miss Allie/Miss
Rina teaches us because it is easier to understand and it helps me
learn more. My favourite lesson was the treasure hunt.

MN: Kura Reo makes me feel happy when | come into Kura Reo. |
feel excited about what we are going to leamn. | like the way Miss
Allie/Miss Rina teach us because they make it easier to understand
when doing quizzes or writing. | look forward to Kura Reo because |
always look forward to what we are going to do! My favourite lesson:
is probably treasure hunting and cooking =)

AB: Kura Reo makes me feel happy and feel better than in class. I'm
feeling good in Kura Reo. It makes me feel very good. 1 like the way
Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach us because | like every Miss and Mr in
school they are helping me to read. Miss Allie also helps me so
much, Miss Rina is also a good teacher. | ook forward to Kura Reo
because | like coming to Kura Reo. My favourite lesson: playing
Blooket with Miss Allie and Miss Rina.

RD: Kura Reo - | learn so much. My teachers guided me so much
and helped me with other activities and improved my learning skill. |
look forward to Kura Reo because | learned so much in brainstorming
and others.

MG: Kura Reo makes me feel excited. | like the way Miss Allie/Miss
Rina teach us because | understand what they are teaching to me.

| look forward to Kura Reo because | learned how to communicate.
My favourite lesson: the word puzzle.

DG: Kura Reo makes me feel good. | like the way Miss Allie/Miss
Rina teach us because we do fun stuff. | look forward to Kura Reo
because | don't have to do humanities and because it's fun. My
favourite lesson: pb and j




LT: Kura Reo makes me feel comfortable and feel more supported.

| like the way Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach us because they explain
every big and small detail and always let us take our time. | look
forward to Kura Reo because | can learn new things and have extra
support. My favourite lesson: all of the lessons in the Kura Reo
because | learned a lot of new things.

UN: Kura Reo makes me feel happy. | like the way Miss Allie/Miss
Rina taught us because they were good at doing their role as a
teacher.

| look forward to Kura Reo because | always understand them
enough. My favourite lesson: all and the scavenger hunt.

AK: Kura Reo makes me feel happy because of the activities we're
doing. | like the way Miss Allie/lMiss Rina teach us because they
make it fun and exciting to learn. | look forward to Kura Reo because
it's fun. My favourite lesson: the pizza making.

HT: Kura Reo makes me feel alive. | like the way Miss Allie/Miss Rina
teach us because it is fun. | look forward to Kura Reo because | don't
have to sit in humanities. My favourite lesson: making pizza.

CL: Kura Reo makes me feel fun, interested, happy and engaged.
My teachers are energetic, and fun to be around. In Kura Reo, | can
learn to read and skip humanities. My favourite lesson: cooking and a
haiku with Mr P.

DP: | feel good in Kura Reo because it is fun but | also learn
something. | like the way Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach us because they
are so kind. My favourite lesson: a treasure hunt.

UNK: Kura Reo makes me feel excited. | like the way Miss Allie/Miss
Rina teach us because they help when | need it. | look forward to
Kura Reo because it gives me more confidence. My favourite lesson:
a treasure hunt.

NK: Kura Reo makes me feel happy of course. | like the way Miss
Allie/Miss Rina teach us because | really like the way they teach me. |
look forward to Kura Reo because it is not boring. My favourite
lessons: cooking lessons, sentence making lessons.

FW: Kura Reo makes me feel that | have the courage to do
Humanities. | like the way Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach us because they
are not rushing us. | look forward to Kura Reo because it helps my
learning.




My favourite lesson: all the lessons.

MB: Kura Reo makes me feel good in a safe place. | like the way
Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach us. | look forward to Kura Reo because of
the activities.

DR V: Kura Reo makes me feel like | belong to this school. | like the
way Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach us because they are always kind and
cool. | look forward to Kura Reo because | can come next year coz
I'm a year 8. My favourite lesson: cooking pizza and games.

RP: Kura Reo makes me feel very good and my teachers are the
best. | look forward to Kura Reo because Kura Reo is the best. My
favourite lesson: playing bus stop.

VS: Kura Reo makes me feel a little bit nervous. | like the way Miss
Allie/Miss Rina teach us because | like how they teach me they are
so kind they don’t shout. | look forward to Kura Reo because it's so
funny. My favourite lesson is to read the story and answer the
questions.

Student feedback
Litarina

AR: Kura Reo makes me get better at writing and reading. | like the
way Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach me because they're nice and fun. It's
fun learning. My favourite lesson was making smoothies.

MB: Kura Reo makes me feel good and in a safe space. | look
forward to the activities. My favourite lesson was making pizzas.

AP: Kura Reo makes me feel nice sometimes and nervous.
Sometimes | like the way Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach me. ltis fun. My
favourite lesson was the scavenger hunt.

SN: Kura Reo makes me feel excited and happy and also that | am
learning something good. Miss Allie/Miss Rina are always energetic
and fun. | don’t feel judged about anything that | do or say. My
favourite lessons are all of them, especially the cooking one !'ll say is
the yummiest one.

SM: Kura Reo makes me feel very good. | like the way Miss
Allie/Miss Rina teach us because they teach us how to be good in the
language. | don't look forward to coming to Kura Reo because | can’t
come again, | am year 8. It's my last. All the lessons have been my
favourites.

PM: Kura Reo makes me feel happy. | like the way Miss Allie/Miss
Rina teach us because they are fun. | look forward to Kura Reo
because it's fun and it makes me happy. My favourite lesson: all of
them.




LF: Kura Reo makes me feel good. | like the way Miss Allie/Miss
Rina teaches us. | look forward to Kura Reo because | love to go.

NV: Kura Reo makes me feel comfortable because they help me with
everything. | like the way Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach us because they
help me with everything in my studies. | look forward to Kura Reo
because it will help me change everything in my future.

AAA: Kura Reo makes me feel very happy because | get to learn
new topics. | like the way Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach us because they
are very respectful. | look forward to Kura Reo because | love the
nice and beautiful teacher. My favourite lesson: reading books.

AP: Kura Reo makes me feel excited and funny because it’s helpful. |
like the way Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach us because | can understand
them. | look forward to Kura Reo because it's good for learning! My
favourite lesson: pizza =)

Justin: Kura Reo makes me feel safe here and | feel that I'm actually
learning something. | like the way Miss Allie/lMiss Rina teach us
because they are easy to understand. | look forward to Kura Reo
because I'm learning something new. My favourite lesson: reading.

SB: Kura Reo makes me feel good about it and | like to come over.

| like the way Miss Allie/Miss Rina teaches us because Miss Allie is a
friend. | look forward to Kura Reo because | like coming by. My
favourite lesson: writing and reading.

RA: Kura Reo makes me feel happy, special, safe place and excited.
| like the way Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach us because they make me
feel even more special. | look forward to Kura Reo because it helps
me with my reading and | love seeing my Kura teachers. My favourite
lesson: eating in the Kura.

TN: Kura Reo makes me feel excited because it's fun what we do,
what we make. | like the way Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach us because
it's fun because | can understand properly. | look forward to Kura Reo
because it helps me with everything. My favourite lesson: pizza! J
cause we get to eat and learn!

JK: Kura Reo makes me feel like | never forget to go back to class.

| like the way Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach us because | like they both
teach me we have fun as we learn. | look forward to Kura Reo
because | like coming here but | don’t have long coz | am going to
MH. My favourite lesson: selbs.

LV: Kura Reo makes me feel like an activity class. | like the way Miss
Allie teaches us because she explains properly and specifically. She
helps us if we don't get it. | look forward to Kura Reo because it’s fun.
My favourite lesson: we went to the whare kai and made pizza and
did some activities.




NN: Kura Reo makes me feel happy, excited, proud, confident and
brave. | like the way Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach us because it helps
my learning. | look forward to Kura Reo because | can learn. My
favourite lesson: food.

MT: Kura Reo makes me feel happy, relaxed and makes me more
understand the lesson. | like the way Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach us
because they have some fun games and they make me feel
confident. | look forward to Kura Reo because | will learn more and
do some fun stuff. My favourite lesson: everything.

KC: Kura Reo makes me feel happy to be here. | like the way Miss
Allie/Miss Rina teach us because Miss Allie and Miss Rina started
activities. And we learn too. | look forward to Kura Reo because we
have our own time. We get to learn about narrative writing. My
favourite lesson: reading and writing.

JR: Kura Reo makes me feel good because | learn new reading and
writing. | like the way Miss Allie/Miss Rina teach us because they
help us to write and read. | look forward to Kura Reo because she
helps us to read and write. My favourite lessons: are reading and
writing and fun games and food.




Recommendations for 2024

- Upskill in my role as the new 2024 DP: Guidance and Support

- Develop a positive relationship with the new RTLB: Liaison to continue the fantastic work that has
been happening up until now.

- Evaluate the use of the Learning Support Register and determine in conjunction with DP: e-Learning
and Infrastructure how to further develop and refine it.

- Oversee the introduction and implementation of the iDeal Structured Literacy programme in
Highfliers

- Support the Learning Assistants in upskilling their abilities on a range of specific interventions

- Digitise the ELLPS and the GaS referral process

- Engage and develop relationships with the local intermediate school ESOL Cluster

- Develop a programme to support LAs to engage with teachers and their planning
- Develop a timetable of professional development around Executive Function and UDL to upskill all

teaching and LA staff.



4. How we have given effect to Te Tiriti o Waitangi
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4)

How effectively does the board
understand and apply Ka Hikita
— Managing for Success as part
of its decision-making
processes?

Our Board are well informed of all that we do here at Manurewa
Intermediate. They are supportive of us as leaders to take responsibility
for Maori students’ presence, engagement, and achievement in all
aspects of our school life.

(B} Engaging Maori students

1) What processes does the | Throughout the year, there are multiple opportunities where we are
school use to gather feedback | gathering feedback from our students. These involve surveys about our
from Maori students about | School, discussions with our Student Councils and through our Te Ao Maori
their learning? module subject. These then feed into our Achievement and Operational

Plans in order to make developments the following year.

2) How effectively do these |/think sharing their voice and being heard, is something our students are
processes  support Maori | used to they are confident to share their opinions and give ideas about
students to confidently share what can be improved at our school.
their feedback and opinions?

3) What feedback have Maori | They enjoy our Langauge Week celebrations and what they have learned
students provided about | during Languages and Te Ao Maori. They like having the opportunity to get
whether the curriculum is | what they require to realise their own unique potential and succeed in their

. lives as Maori. 71% of students feel like their Teachers make them excited
engaging and relevant? ] ; .
about learning and 77% feel like their teacher makes them want to learn
more.

4) What feedback have Maori | In our most recent survey with students, it is good to see the increase from
students provided about the | 2022 to 2023, ie 62% to 69% of students feel like their teacher knows them
quality of teacher-student well, however, it is interesting to see this percentage below 70%. As
relationships? reflective teachers and leadership, we are working on strategies we can

implement or do differently to ensure our students believe that we know
them well and are able to build quality relationships with the students in
our class.

5) What action has the school | There is a good commitment by the staff to upskill themselves, in
taken as a result of this | collaboration with their students and other staff in relation to how they
feedback? can improve this. Ongoing reflection and adaptation of practices through

Assessment for Learning PD is in place to better meet the needs of not only
our Mdori students but all our students.

6) How well does the school | We have strategies in place to ensure that plans, policies, and local

monitor and report on the
effectiveness of these
actions?

curriculum reflect local tikanga Maori, matauranga Maori and Te Ao Maori
strategies for achieving equitable outcomes for Maori students and taking
all reasonable steps to make instruction available in tikanga Mdaori and te
reo Maori are detailed within our various Operational Plans.




7)

How well does the school
promote and make te reo
and Maori

Maori tikanga

accessible to all students

across the curriculum?

All the time! Our Practice Leader and Cultural Focus group are models of
this for all teachers, integrating Maori perspectives, Te Reo me ona Tikanga
that can be used across all subject areas. We are conscious of the fact that
our students have grown up as urban Mdori so have not necessarily grown
up in and around Reo Maori or Tikanga Mdori. Through powhiri, Class
Marae Stays, the Legend of Manurewa and Reo Maori language learning
we are able to cater for all our students.

8) How well does the school | This is something we do really well. We have a Cultural Council made up of
foster supportive student | 10 students who fit the demographic of our school. These students are
leaders and/or role models chosen based on their leadership and knowledge of their culture and are
for Maori students? therefore role models for our other Mdori students.

9) How well are Maori students | Our students are encouraged to know their potential and feel supported to

supported to develop and
reach goals for their learning?

set goals and take action, to enjoy their success as Maori! This was evident
in our most recent survey with 84% of our students feeling that their
teachers definitely help them achieve their learning goals. In saying this,
what is good for Mdori students should be good for ALL students. Just
because they are Maori doesn’t mean we should be doing things differently
for them. Our curriculum is inclusive and we want ALL our students to feel
supported to develop and reach their learning goals!

10) How well are Maori students

supported to develop career
that help them
reach potential?

pathways

Each year we have a focus on Careers where students are able to learn
about a career of their choice in more depth. It would be good to liaise
with more Maori career pathways and have people come in to share this
with our students.

{C) Engaging Maori whanau

1) What processes does the | Each year, during Terms 2 and 4 we hold a Fono/Hui to engage with our
school use to consult and | Whanau and seek their feedback and ideas about what we are doing well as
engage with the whanau of a school and what th(?'y woqld like to sefe us improve. This /s'done either

. through korero and discussions over kai, surveys and or brainstorms.
Maori students? . . .
Feedback is always given and received well.

2) How effectively do these | The community we live in sometimes creates barriers to getting our
processes support whanau to | Whanau in and we are always looking at different ways to engage our
confidently  share  their whanau at school. During our Student Involved Conferences, we can have

between 87% and 92% of our whanau engage with their child's learning,
feedback, concerns, and . . ) .

Al | but when it comes to a Fono/Hui (only two nights across with whole year)
opinions about what s | o, norents are less inclined to attend. This is and always has been
happening in the school? something we are working on and constantly thinking about.

3) How does the school involve | See above

whanau in supporting their

students and the school

activities?




4)

How effective are these
processes and how can these
be strengthened further?

See above

The presence of Maori
students

According to our last attendance report (most recent data from MOE):
In Term 1 2023, we have had 62% of Mdaori students attending between
90-100% of the time, and 27% of Maori students attending between
80-90% of the time.

How well does the school
support Maori students to
feel they can be successful
learners?

See question 9 from the section above

AN

What specific initiatives has
the school implemented to
support Maori  student
presence at school?

We are huge on being at school on time and in the right uniform! There is
not a single strateqy that is used to encourage our students to attend
school, instead it is a combination of a range of things:

- Contacting whanau as soon as they are absent

- Having open and positive lines of communication with parents

- Ensuring our students enjoy being here and want to come here

- Providing a range of different experiences and opportunities for

them both inside and outside of the classroom
- Follow up, follow up, follow up
- Poutoko Hapori to engage our families/students in Education

How does the school
evaluate the effectiveness of
these initiatives to improve
Maori student presence?

We are consistently evaluating these initiatives and they all dovetail with
our various operational plans - Mdaori Achievement Plan, Attendance Plan
as well as our Operational Plans based on our 5 Strategic goals.

What data does the school
have about truancy,
stand-downs,  suspensions,
and  exclusions for all
students over time (eg. the
last five years)

Musac Edge is our SMS system where we keep all notes about truancy,
stand-downs, suspensions and exclusions over time. Staff are constantly
reminded and informed of any changes and follow-up is made to ensure
notes are provided for any of the above reasons.

DP: Pastoral Care maintains ongoing files and reports about any
stand-downs and suspensions over time.

10} How does the school use the

analysis of this data about
truancy, stand downs,
suspensions, and exclusions
(over time) to improve the
presence and engagement of
Maori students?

On a weekly/daily basis, relevant DP’s and our Poutoko Hapori engage with
this data to support not only our Maori students to attend school, but all
our students. Plans are put in place for individual students to support their
engagement back into school life.

We also have an Attendance Plan where the analysis of data about truancy,
suspensions and exclusions is reflected over the course of the year.




(D) The achievement of Maori students

1) How well does the school | Manurewa Intermediate has very robust processes to analyse the
analyse assessment | achievement of Maori students. Our primary mechanism to analyse the
information to provide achievement of students is our achievement reports which are written

. . three times a year. In all reports, the achievement of Mdori is reported on.
useful information about . . o
. ) The primary data referred to is OTJ data. Commentary and analysis within
the academic achievement the reports can give a breakdown of Maori achievement relative to other
of Maori students over demographics.
time?

2) What trends or patterns are | Mdori students within both the ‘Needs Support’ and ‘Working Towards’
evident in the academic | categories make progress and move within the curriculum. Mdori boys
achievement of Maori | (Particularly in Needs Support) make marginally greater progress than
students over time? girls. These trends are supported by the assessment data we have

collected throughout the year.

3) How does the school use | Manurewa Intermediate uses this information in a range of ways. One
this information to improve | example is analysis from achievement reports is used to make changes to
the academic achievement | 1o tracking of student achievement is managed at MI. A key change
of students? that will be made for 2024 is the sharing of target student achievement

data with teachers to allow them to monitor these student's achievement
levels closely. This will not only support our Maori students on the cusp of
‘At Expectation’ improvement, but it will help ALL our students make
progress.

4) What specific initiatives has - Rasing Capacity Groups (RCGs) consistently focus on helping
the school put in place to teachers raise their capacity as teachers based on their own
raise the academic specific focus.
achievement  of  Maori - Our appraisal process is also an initiative that gives teachers the

opportunity to reflect on their practice and how well they cater
students? for the needs of Maori students.
- Passions Pods are required to show how they adhere to the
principles of the Treaty of Waitangi.
- Reading Champion who reads in small groups with children who
need the extra push
- Numicon/High Fliers initiatives

5) How well does the school | There are multiple ways in which we monitor and report on the
monitor and report on the | effectiveness of these initiatives:
effectiveness  of  these - Curriculum objectives
e - Strategic Goal reflections
initiatives? o . .

- Individual teacher OAF reflections and observations
- Surveys

6) How well does the board | Achievement report data is shared with the BOT where comprehensive
use information about the | analysis is provided and explained. Specific reference is made to not only
achievement of Maori | Ur Maori students but to all demographics at Ml and how they are
students in its decision progressing as the year goes on.

making?







12) To what extent has the

quality of achievement
information improved?

There have been measures put in place to enhance the accuracy, depth,
and relevance of achievement data. This improvement is reflected in the
comprehensive analysis where specific attention is given not only to
overall academic performance but also to the progress of diverse
demographic groups, including Pacific students.

3. STUDENTS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS

(A) School culture and leadership for including students with high needs

1) To what extent do the | Teachers are expected to differentiate their lessons to accommodate the
staff expect to adapt their | individual learning needs of all their students including those with special
practice to support the needs. Needs can vary being both physical and learning but most cases

- can be supported by adaptions in the classroom. Professional
achievement of students . ; .
. . development was provided to all staff to support this focussing on
with high needs? differentiation by; content, process, product and environment.

2) How caring is the culture | Extremely, and I don’t say that lightly. Despite our large size and specialised

of our school towards | hature thereis an expectation that all teachers who might encounter a student
. ) know about them. There are a number of milestones and stop gaps to ensure
students with high needs? this happens. These include robust transition discussions, the wall of fame (visual
LSR wall with pictures) and discussion at staff meetings about our more complex
needs students.
3) To what extent do staff | Staff have access to a wide variety of services though this is always an

have access to a wide

range of knowledge,
strategies, and networks
to support students with
high their

whanau/families?

needs and

area for development:
- LSC provides support with professional development and
bespoke plans for specific kids
- Teachers (and students) are referred to RTLB for bespoke support
for students with complex needs
- LSCis also responsible for communicating with whanau with
support from the DP: Guidance and Support

(B) Teamwork, working with families, using information and transactions

1)

To what extent do we
hold
and

internal meetings,
with
to

with

meetings
external people,
support students

special needs?

Meetings are frequent and robust. Weekly meetings are held to discuss
students of concern and the progress with support for various students.
These are attended by the MoE: Learning Support Service manager, RTLB
Liason and all members of the Guidance and Support team.




2)

To what extent does our
with the
parents of students with

relationships

high needs support the
inclusion and
achievement of these

students?

The recent role of Learning Support Coordinator, which is funded by the
Ministry has as part of its guidelines the specific purpose of creating and
maintaining robust relationships with whanau.

Our LSC s incredibly good at this and is the primary contact for our more
complex learners. Nirvana fosters those relationships who making herself
available at almost all times and whianau have contacted her during
weekends and evenings to positive outcomes.

3)

How well do we use

various forms of
information about
students including
information about
achievement, social and
physical skills, to better
support

students with high needs?

include and

Data is reviewed regularly and |EPs with whanau are held twice a year to
formalise the process of goal setting, review of progress and transition as
the student approaches Year 9.

Additionally, students are discussed weekly during the Guidance and
Support Hui with all internal agencies having an opportunity to comment
on a variety of factors including attendance, resent testing, behaviour
and other observations. Interventions are put in place quickly and those
supporting are held accountable during the same meetings.

4)

To what extent does the
school have the systems,

coordination, links with
external agencies, and
internal  expertise to

support the transaction of
students with high needs
both to and from their
school?

The transition process is incredibly robust and has multiple processes to
support students smoothly moving in and out of the school. Some of
these are:

- Transition meetings during Term Four with local high schools to
support students moving to Year 9

- Transition meetings during Term Four with contributing Primary
Schools to assist with support and class placement.

- Transition documents which were agreed upon by the local
intermediate schools to ensure there is robust information being
passed on to high school and received from primary schools.

- Transition visits

(C) Cultural identity, ORS, individual learning programmes, and school safety

1) To what extent do we | Student’s cultural identity is supported and celebrated in a variety of ways
support  the  cultural | including:
identity of students with - Participating in Cultural Enrichment every Wednesday (a
high needs? performance-based programme around culture)
- Participating in the Language Weeks in Form class
- Aform time subject in Term 1 - Languages where students are
learning about different languages and/or Te Reo Maori
- Buddy system to support those with High needs in the classroom
- LA support for specific high needs students or groups of students
2) To what extent are the ! it's concerning to note that, out of our recent ORS applications, only one

school’s ORS applications
accepted by GSE?

has received approval, and that was specifically for a student with vision
needs. Unfortunately, despite the severity of certain cases, applications

addressing learning needs have consistently faced rejection. It would be
valuable to ascertain the specific reasons behind these declinations for a




more informed approach moving forward.

3) To what extent do all | Professional development has been a huge focus around this in 2023.
teaching staff know how Staff have been developed however as part of our review it’s clear that
to develop differentiated staff are asking for more focussed PD around the needs of specific
programmes for students students.
with high needs?

4) To what extent do the | Meetings for our IEP students are all deliberately designed to be SMART
school’s IEPs  provide | targetted.
specific, measurable,
attributable, realistic, and
time-bound goals for
student achievement?

5) How do we know that | Robust systems are put in place around all behavioural situations however

students with high needs
are safe from bullying?

there is also a in school system called SKODEL for students to submit or
report bullying concerns. Additionally high needs students are supported
by Learning Assistants and the interactions with other students are closely
monitored




5. Statement of compliance with employment policy

2¢4c¢.
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6. Financial Statements

The Financial Statement in the following pages includes:

Statement of Responsibility

This statement is signed by the principal and the presiding member. It acknowledges that the school board is
responsible for the preparation and accuracy of the financial statements and states that the school board has
established and maintained a system of internal control to safeguard the assets of the school.

Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense

This statement summarises the revenue and expense of the school over the financial year. It shows whether
the school has managed to operate within the funding they have received.

Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity

This statement shows the value and movements of the Government's investment over the course of financial
year in the school, (this is known as ‘equity’) in the financial statement.

Statement of Financial Position

This statement shows everything the school owns (assets) and everything it owes (liabilities) as at 31
December 2023.

Statement of Cash Flows

This statement shows all cash received and all cash paid by the school over the financial year.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide an extra level of detail that supports the information shown in
the front of the accounts.

Independent Auditor’s Report

This report is prepared by the auditor of the school and is included in the annual report. It provides an
opinion to the readers of the annual report whether the financial statements comply with generally accepted
accounting practice, and fairly represent the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
school.
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Manurewa Intermediate School

Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2023 2022
Budget
Notes Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ $ $
Revenue
Government Grants 2 9,948,870 7,909,750 9,637,648
Locally Raised Funds 3 203,502 321,500 503,697
Interest 89,632 15,000 43,002
Other Revenue 56,753 - -
Total Revenue 10,298,757 8,246,250 10,184,347
Expense
Locally Raised Funds 3 62,730 30,500 49,653
Learning Resources 4 6,242,672 5,864,596 5,743,712
Administration 5 1,336,408 367,271 1,272,595
Interest 19,645 20,000 26,925
Property 6 2,170,471 1,956,950 2,082,181
Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 2,852 - 4,982
Total Expense 9,834,778 8,239,317 9,180,048
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for the year 463,979 6,933 1,004,299
Other Comprehensive Revenue and Expense
Total Comprehensive Revenue and Expense for the Year 463,979 6,933 1,004,299

The above Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes which form part of these financial statements.
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Manurewa Intermediate School

Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2023 2022
Budget
Notes Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ $

Equity at 1 January 5,001,596 5,001,594 3,997,297
Total comprehensive revenue and expense for the year 463,979 6,933 1,004,299

Contributions from / (Distributions to) the Ministry of Education - - -

Contribution - Furniture and Equipment Grant 41,264 - -
Equity at 31 December 5,506,839 5,008,527 5,001,596
Accumulated comprehensive revenue and expense 5,506,839 5,008,527 5,001,596
Equity at 31 December 5,506,839 5,008,527 5,001,596

The above Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

which form part of these financial statements.
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Manurewa Intermediate School

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2023

2023 2023 2022
Notes Actual Budget Actual
{Unaudited)
$ $ $

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 52,765 108,552 144,396
Accounts Receivable 8 546,494 610,000 614,184
GST Receivable 89,057 - 26,657
Prepayments 60,121 12,000 10,357
Investments 1,506,931 1,630,723 2,480,064
Funds Receivable for Capital Works Projects 15 14,340 - 27,999

2,269,708 2,361,275 3,303,657
Current Liabilities
GST Payable - 22,000 -
Accounts Payable 11 964,639 606,721 778,232
Revenue Received in Advance 12 116,616 15,000 14,978
Provision for Cyclical Maintenance 13 26,000 - 25,846
Finance Lease Liability 14 117,024 114,530 105,478
Funds held for Capital Works Projects 15 33,019 - 59,407

1,257,298 758,251 983,941
Working Capital Surplus/(Deficit) 1,012,410 1,603,024 2,319,716

Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 10 4,755,785 3,661,943 3,003,677

4,755,785 3,661,943 3,003,677

Non-current Liabilities

Provision for Cyclical Maintenance 13 211,075 211,075 170,094
Finance Lease Liability 14 50,284 45,365 151,702

261,359 256,440 321,796
Net Assets 5,506,839 5,008,527 5,001,596
Equity 5,506,839 5,008,527 5,001,596

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes which form part of
these financial statements.
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Manurewa Intermediate School

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2023 2022
Note Actual Budget Actual
(Unaudited)
$ $ $
Cash flows from Operating Activities
Government Grants 2,914,723 2,568,415 3,016,480
Locally Raised Funds 355,133 306,982 497,683
Goods and Services Tax (net) (62,400) 48,657 (48,651)
Payments to Employees (1,075,577) (1,264,327) (895,855)
Payments to Suppliers (920,826) (1,187,609) (809,325)
Interest Paid (19,645) (20,000) (26,925)
Interest Received 89,565 19,660 25,497
Net cash from/(to) Operating Activities 1,280,973 471,778 1,758,904
Cash flows from Investing Activities -
Proceeds from Sale of Property Plant & Equipment (and Intangibles) - - 609
Purchase of Property Plant & Equipment (and Intangibles) (2,266,053) (1,185,274) (862,382)
Purchase of Investments 973,133 849,341 (1,131,227)
Net cash from/(to) Investing Activities (1,292,920) (335,933) (1,993,000)
Cash flows from Financing Activities
Furniture and Equipment Grant 41,264 - -
Finance Lease Payments (108,223) (140,285) (100,955)
Funds Administered on Behalf of Other Parties (12,726) (31,404) (138,342)
Net cash from/(to) Financing Activities (79,685) (171,689) (239,297)
Net increasel/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (91,632) (35,844) (473,393)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 7 144,396 144,396 617,789
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 7 52,764 108,552 144,396

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes which form part of these

financial statements.
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Manurewa Intermediate School
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

1. Statement of Accounting Policies

a) Reporting Entity

Manurewa Intermediate School (the School) is a Crown entity as specified in the Crown Entities Act 2004 and a school as
described in the Education and Training Act 2020. The Board is of the view that the School is a public benefit entity for
financial reporting purposes.

b) Basis of Preparation

Reporting Period

The financial statements have been prepared for the period 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 and in accordance with
the requirements of the Education and Training Act 2020.

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, and the accounting policies have been consistently
applied throughout the period.

Financial Reporting Standards Applied

The Education and Training Act 2020 requires the School, as a Crown entity, to prepare financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practice. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practice in New Zealand, applying Public Sector Public Benefit Entity (PBE) Standards Reduced
Disclosure Regime as appropriate to public benefit entities that qualify for Tier 2 reporting. The school is considered a
Public Benefit Entity as it meets the criteria specified as 'having a primary objective to provide goods and/or services for
community or social benefit and where any equity has been provided with a view to supporting that primary objective rather
than for financial return to equity holders'.

PBE Accounting Standards Reduced Disclosure Regime
The School qualifies for Tier 2 as the school is not publicly accountable and is not considered large as it falls below the
expense threshold of $30 million per year. All relevant reduced disclosure concessions have been taken.

Measurement Base
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis unless otherwise noted in a specific accounting policy.

Presentation Currency
These financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, rounded to the nearest doliar.

Specific Accounting Policies
The accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

Critical Accounting Estimates And Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.
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Cyclical maintenance

A school recognises its obligation to maintain the Ministry’s buildings in a good state of repair as a provision for cyclical
maintenance. This provision relates mainly to the painting of the school buildings. The estimate is based on the schoof's
best estimate of the cost of painting the school and when the school is required to be painted, based on an assessment of
the school's condition. During the year, the Board assesses the reasonableness of its painting maintenance plan on which
the provision is based. Cyclical maintenance is disclosed at note 13.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The School reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting date. The
School believes that the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment, as disclosed in the significant
accounting policies, are appropriate to the nature of the property, plant and equipment at reporting date. Property, plant and
equipment is disclosed at note 10.

Critical Judgements in applying accounting policies
Management has exercised the following critical judgements in applying accounting policies:

Classification of leases

Determining whether a lease is a finance lease or an operating lease requires judgement as to whether the lease transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the school. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee. In contrast, an operating
lease is a lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the
lessee.

Judgement is required on various aspects that include, but are not limited to, the fair value of the leased asset, the
economic life of the leased asset, whether or not to include renewal options in the lease term, and determining an
appropriate discount rate to calculate the present value of the minimum lease payments.Classification as a finance lease
means the asset is recognised in the statement of financial position as property, plant, and equipment, whereas for an
operating lease no such asset is recognised. Finance lease liability disclosures are contained in note 14. Future operating
lease commitments are disclosed in note 20.

Recognition of grants

The School reviews the grants monies received at the end of each reporting period and whether any require a provision to
carry forward amounts unspent. The School believes all grants received have been appropriately recognised as a liability if
required. Government grants are disclosed at note 2.

¢) Revenue Recognition

Government Grants
The school receives funding from the Ministry of Education. The following are the main types of funding that the School
receives:

Operational grants are recorded as revenue when the School has the rights to the funding, which is in the year that the
funding is received.

Other Ministry Grants for directly funded programs are recorded as revenue when the School has the rights to the funding in
the period they relate to. The grants are not received in cash by the School and are paid directly by the Ministry of
Education.

The property from which the School operates is owned by the Crown and managed by the Ministry of Education on behalf of
the Crown. Grants for the use of land and buildings are not received in cash by the School as they equate to the deemed
expense for using the land and buildings which are owned by the Crown. The School’s use of the land and buildings as
occupant is based on a property occupancy document as gazetted by the Ministry. The expense is based on an assumed
market rental yield on the value of land and buildings as used for rating purposes.

This is a non-cash revenue that is offset by a non-cash expense. The use of land and buildings grants and associated
expenditure are recorded in the period the School uses the land and buildings.
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Other Grants where conditions exist

Other grants are recorded as revenue when the School has the rights to the funding, unless there are unfulifilled conditions
attached to the grant, in which case the amount relating to the unfulfilled conditions is recognised as a liability and released
to revenue as the conditions are fulfilled.

Donations, Gifts and Bequests

Donations, gifts and bequests are recognised as an asset and revenue when the right to receive funding or the asset has
been established unless there is an obligation to return funds if conditions are not met. If conditions are not met, funding is
recognised as revenue in advance and recognised as revenue when conditions are satisfied.

Interest Revenue
Interest Revenue earned on cash and cash equivalents and investments is recorded as revenue in the period it is earned.

d) Operating Lease Payments
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense on a
straight line basis over the term of the lease.

e) Finance Lease Payments
Finance lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term on an effective interest basis.

f) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, bank balances, deposits held at call with banks, and other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less, and bank overdrafts. The carrying amount of cash and
cash equivalents represent fair value.

g) Accounts Receivable

Short-term receivables are recorded at the amount due, less an allowance for expected credit losses (uncollectable debts).
The schools receivables are largely made up of funding from the Ministry of Education. Therefore the level of uncollectable
debts is not considered to be material. However, short-term receivables are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery.

h) Investments
Bank term deposits are initially measured at the amount invested. Interest is subsequently accrued and added to the
investment balance. A loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised if the estimated loss allowance is material.

i) Property, Plant and Equipment
Land and buildings owned by the Crown are excluded from these financial statements. The Board’s use of the land and
buildings as ‘occupant’ is based on a property occupancy document.

Improvements (funded by the Board) to buildings owned by the Crown or directly by the board are recorded at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost or, in the case of donated assets, fair value at the date of receipt, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost or fair value, as the case may be, includes those costs that relate
directly to bringing the asset to the location where it will be used and making sure it is in the appropriate condition for its
intended use.

Gains and losses on disposals (i.e. sold or given away) are determined by comparing the proceeds received with the

carrying amounts (i.e. the book value). The gain or loss arising from the disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.
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Finance Leases

A finance lease transfers to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset, whether or
not title is eventually transferred. At the start of the lease term, finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the
statement of financial position at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The finance charge is charged to the surplus or deficit over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. The amount recognised as an asset is depreciated over its useful
life. If there is no reasonable certainty whether the school will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term, the asset is
fully depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its useful life.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment except for library resources are depreciated over their estimated useful lives on a straight
line basis. Library resources are depreciated on a diminishing value basis. Depreciation of all assets is reported in the
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

The estimated useful lives of the assets are:

Building improvements 10-33 years

Furniture and equipment 05-10 years

Information and communication technology 03-10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Leased assets held under a Finance Lease Term of Lease

Library resources 12.5% Diminishing value

j} Accounts Payable .

Accounts Payable represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the School prior to the end of the financial year
which are unpaid. Accounts Payable are recorded at the amount of cash required to settle those liabilities. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

k) Employee Entitlements

Short-term employee entitlements

Employee entitlements that are expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting period in which the
employees provide the related service are measured based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay. These include
salaries and wages accrued up to balance date and annual leave earned, by non teaching staff, but not yet taken at balance
date.

Long-term employee entitlements

Employee benefits that are not expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the reporting period in which
the employee provides the related service, such as retirement and long service leave, have been calculated on an actuarial
basis.

The calculations are based on the likely future entitlements accruing to employees, based on years of service, years to
entitlement, the likelihood that employees will reach the point of entitlement, and contractual entitlement information, and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows. Remeasurements are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in
which they arise.

1) Revenue Received in Advance

Revenue received in advance relates to fees received from grants received from Trusts where there are unfulfilled
obligations for the School to provide services in the future. The fees or grants are recorded as revenue as the obligations
are fulfilled and the fees or grants are earned.
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m) Funds held for Capital works

The school directly receives funding from the Ministry of Education for capital works projects that are included in the School
five year capital works agreement. These funds are held on behalf and for a specified purpose. As such, these transactions
are not recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

The School holds sufficient funds to enable the funds to be used for their intended purpose at any time.

n) Provision for Cyclical Maintenance

The property from which the School operates is owned by the Crown, and is vested in the Ministry. The Ministry has
gazetted a property occupancy document that sets out the Board’s property maintenance responsibilities. The Board is
responsible for maintaining the land, buildings and other facilities on the School site in a state of good order and repair.

Cyclical maintenance, which involves painting the interior and exterior of the School, makes up the most significant part of

the Board’s responsibilities outside day-to-day maintenance. The provision is a reasonable estimate, based on the school's
best estimate of the cost of painting the school and when the school is required to be painted, based on an assessment of

the school's condition.

The School carries out painting maintenance of the whole school over a 7 to 10 year period. The economic outflow of this is
dependent on the plan established by the school to meet this obligation and is detailed in the notes and disclosures of these
accounts.

o) Financial Instruments

The Schoal's financial assets comprise cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and investments. All of these
financial assets, except for investments that are shares, are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Investments that are shares are categorised as 'financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive revenue and
expense' for accounting purposes in accordance with financial reporting standards. On initial recognition of an equity
investment that is not held for trading, the School may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's
fair value in other comprehensive revenue and expense. This election has been made for investments that are shares.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in surplus or
deficit unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive revenue and expense and are never reclassified to surplus or deficit.

The School’s financial liabilities comprise accounts payable, borrowings, finance lease liability, and painting contract liability.
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
any gain or loss on derecognition are recognised in surplus or deficit.

p) Borrowings

Borrowings on normal commercial terms are initially recognised at the amount borrowed plus transaction costs. Interest due
on the borrowings is subsequently accrued and added to the borrowings balance. Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the school has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after balance
date.

q) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
The financial statements have been prepared on a GST exclusive basis, with the exception of accounts receivable and
accounts payable which are stated as GST inclusive.

The net amount of GST paid to, or received from, the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing activities, is
classified as a net operating cash flow in the statements of cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST.

r) Budget Figures
The budget figures are extracted from the School budget that was approved by the Board.

s) Services received in-kind

From time to time the School receives services in-kind, including the time of volunteers. The School has elected not to
recognise services received in kind in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.
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2. Government Grants

2023 2023 2022
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ $ $
Government Grants - Ministry of Education 3,807,952 2,459,750 3,905,502
Teachers' Salaries Grants 4,577,167 4,000,000 4,298,271
Use of Land and Buildings Grants 1,563,751 1,450,000 1,433,875
9,948,870 7,909,750 9,637,648
The school has opted in to the donations scheme for this year. Total amount received was $132,851.
3. Locally Raised Funds
Local funds raised within the School's community are made up of:
2023 2023 2022
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
Revenue $ $ $
Donations & Bequests 83,330 6,000 304,690
Fees for Extra Curricular Activities 30,338 6,000 25,670
Trading 9,000 9,000 9,000
Fundraising & Community Grants 26,000 27,000 26,001
Other Revenue 54,834 273,500 138,336
203,502 321,500 503,697
Expense
Extra Curricular Activities Costs 35,821 20,000 34,890
Trading - 500 -
Other Locally Raised Funds Expenditure 26,909 10,000 14,763
62,730 30,500 49,653
Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year Locally Raised Funds 140,772 291,000 454,044

Beyond Horizons Charitable Trust donated $ 148,692 for various school activities, events and a contribution towards the construction of

the board funded swimming pool.
Four Winds Foundation donated $10,000.
Te Hononga Akoranga COMET donated $20,000.

4. Learning Resources

2023 2023 2022
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ $ $

Curricular 284,680 307,200 266,222
Equipment Repairs 35,378 45,500 40,007
Library Resources 6,162 7,400 8,420
Employee Benefits - Salaries 5,361,535 4,867,996 4,865,702
Staff Development 25,481 66,500 57,060
Depreciation 529,436 570,000 506,301
6,242,672 5,864,596 5,743,712
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5. Administration

2023 2023 2022
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ $ $

Audit Fees 8,692 8,721 8,496
Board Fees 2,580 3,000 2,690
Board Expenses 5,135 11,500 5,635
Healthy School Lunch Expenses 1,022,739 - 949,808
Communication 11,759 18,000 13,388
Consumables 10,773 13,000 9,424
Operating Leases 802 500 -
Other 49,042 63,850 47,745
Employee Benefits - Salaries 156,770 181,000 175,251
Insurance 28,116 27,700 20,157
Service Providers, Contractors and Consultancy 40,000 40,000 40,000

1,336,408 367,271 1,272,595
6. Property

2023 2023 2022
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ $ $

Caretaking and Cleaning Consumables 39,040 47,000 36,874
Consultancy and Contract Services 108,692 110,000 92,769
Cyclical Maintenance 41,135 43,000 66,489
Grounds 20,057 13,500 15,979
Heat, Light and Water 108,259 95,000 90,046
Repairs and Maintenance 124,183 61,450 171,558
Use of Land and Buildings 1,563,751 1,450,000 1,433,875
Security 29,063 16,000 15,393
Employee Benefits - Salaries 136,291 121,000 159,198

2,170,471 1,956,950 2,082,181

The use of land and buildings figure represents 5% of the school’s total property value. Property values are established as part of the

nation-wide revaluation exercise that is conducted every 30 June for the Ministry of Education’s year-end reporting purposes.

7. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2023 2023 2022
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ $ $
Bank Accounts 50,765 106,552 142,396
Short-term Bank Deposits 2,000 2,000 2,000
Cash and cash equivalents for Statement of Cash Flows 52,765 108,552 144,396

The carrying value of short-term deposits with original maturity dates of 90 days or less approximates their fair value.
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8. Accounts Receivable

2023 2023 2022
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ $ $
Receivables 460 25,000 460
Receivables from the Ministry of Education - - 23,000
Interest Receivable 19,727 15,000 19,660
Banking Staffing Underuse 105,914 110,000 205,664
Teacher Salaries Grant Receivable 420,393 460,000 365,400
546,494 610,000 614,184
Receivables from Exchange Transactions 20,187 40,000 20,120
Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions 526,307 570,000 594,064
546,494 610,000 614,184
9. Investments
The School's investment activities are classified as follows:
2023 2023 2022
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
Current Asset $ $ $
Short-term Bank Deposits 1,506,931 1,630,723 2,480,064
Total Investments 1,506,931 1,630,723 2,480,064
10. Property, Plant and Equipment
Opening Balance
(NBV) Additions Disposals Impairment  Depreciation ~ Total (NBV)
2023 $ $ $ $ $ $
Buildings 1,548,484 2,000,106 (2,854) - (219,0869) 3,326,667
Furniture and Equipment 287,727 117,280 - - (96,406) 308,601
Information and Communication 318,974 61,994 (132,338) 248,630
Technology -
Motor Vehicles 56,967 77,855 - - (30,672) 104,150
Leased Assets 733,148 18,352 - - (42,568) 708,932
Library Resources 58,369 8,821 - - (8,383) 58,807
Balance at 31 December 2023 3,003,669 2,284,408 (2,854) - (529,436) 4,755,787

The following note can be used for each class of asset that are held under a finance lease:
The net carrying value of assets held under a finance lease is $x 2023 $708,931.
The net carrying value of asset held under a finance lease is $x 2022: $733,148.
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Buildings

Furniture and Equipment
Information and Communication
Technology

Motor Vehicles
Leased Assets
Library Resources

Balance at 31 December 2023

2023 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Cost or Valuation Accumulated Net Book Cost or Accumulated Net Book
Depreciation Value Valuation  Depreciation Value
$ $ $ $ $ $
6,724,240 (3,397,573) 3,326,667 4,728,469 (3,179,985) 1,548,484
1,038,439 (729,838) 308,601 929,032 (641,305) 287,727
980,23 731,608 248,630
8 ( ) 938,881 (619,907) 318,974
182,095 (77,945) 104,150 104,240 (47,273) 56,967
865,518 (156,588) 708,930 847,172 (114,019) 733,153
117,460 (58,653) 58,807 108,638 (50,270} 58,368
9,907,990 (5,152,205) 4,755,785 7,656,432 (4,652,759) 3,003,673

Included in Buildings is Work in Progress relating to the pool costing $1,562,212. The expected completion date of the pool is 31 May
2024 at which point the school will start depreciating its asset.

11. Accounts Payable

Creditors
Accruals

Employee Entitlements - Salaries

Employee Entitlements - Leave Accrual

Payables for Exchange Transactions
Payables for Non-exchange Transactions - Taxes Payable (PAYE and Rates)
Payables for Non-exchange Transactions - Other

The carrying value of payables approximates their fair value.

12. Revenue Received in Advance

Grants in Advance - Ministry of Education

Other revenue in Advance
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2023 2023 2022
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ $ $
362,242 60,000 232,005
5,821 6,721 6,496
492,981 460,000 459,481
103,595 80,000 80,250
964,639 606,721 778,232
964,639 606,721 778,232
964,639 606,721 778,232
2023 2023 2022
Budget
|
Actual (Unaudited) Actua
$ $ $
16,760 - 10,000
99,856 15,000 4,978
116,616 15,000 14,978




13. Provision for Cyclical Maintenance

2023 2023 2022
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ $ $

Provision at the Start of the Year 195,940 170,094 129,451
Increase to the Provision During the Year 41,135 40,981 66,489
Provision at the End of the Year 237,075 211,075 195,940
Cyclical Maintenance - Current 26,000 - 25,846
Cyclical Maintenance - Non current 211,075 211,075 170,094
237,075 211,075 195,940

14. Finance Lease Liability

The School has entered into a number of finance lease agreements for computers and other ICT equipment. Minimum lease payments
payable:

2023 2023 2022
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ $ $
No Later than One Year 127,697 124,530 124,317
Later than One Year and no Later than Five Years 52,665 50,365 162,861
Future Finance Charges (13,054) (15,000) (29,998)
167,308 159,895 257,180
Represented by
Finance lease liability - Current 117,024 114,530 105,478
Finance lease liability - Non current 50,284 45,365 151,702
167,308 159,895 257,180

15. Funds Held for Capital Works Projects

During the year the School received and applied funding from the Ministry of Education for the following capital works projects. The
amount of cash held on behalf of the Ministry for capital works project is included under cash and cash equivalents in note 7.

Opening Receipts Board Closing
2023 Balances from MOE Payments Contributions Balances
$ $ $ $ $

Distribution Boards 14,977 - - - 14,977
Overhead Cable Conduits 18,041 - - - 18,041
Refurbish 35,368&37 (27,998) 32,129 (44,058) 39,927 -
Library Resource Room Refurbishment 26,384 1,310 (35,560) 7,867 1
Lighting Replacement to LED - 129,060 (171,759) 28,359 (14,340)
Totals 31,404 162,499 (251,377) 76,153 18,679
Represented by:
Funds Held on Behalf of the Ministry of Education 33,019
Funds Receivable from the Ministry of Education (14,340)
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Opening Receipts Board Closing

2022 Balances from MOE Payments Contributions  Balances
$ $ $ $ $
Distribution Boards 14,977 - - - 14,977
Overhead Cable Conduits 18,041 - - - 18,041
Fire Alarm and Communication System (53,394) 22,851 (4,909) 35,452 -
Refurbish 35,36&37 171,589 - (231,990) 32,403 (27,998)
Replace Roof Gutters 25,126 - (25,126) - -
New office for LSC (6,594) 7,299 (10,190) 9,485 -
Library Resource Room Refurbishment - 62,402 (36,019) - 26,384
Totals 169,745 92,552 (308,234) 77,340 31,404
Represented by:
Funds Held on Behalf of the Ministry of Education 59,404
Funds Receivable from the Ministry of Education (27,998)
2023 2023 2022
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ $ $

16. Related Party Transactions

The School is a controlled entity of the Crown, and the Crown provides the major source of revenue to the school. The school enters into
transactions with other entities also controlled by the Crown, such as government departments, state-owned enterprises and other Crown
entities. Transactions with these entities are not disclosed as they occur on terms and conditions no more or less favourable than those
that it is reasonable to expect the school would have adopted if dealing with that entity at arm’s length.

Related party disclosures have not been made for transactions with related parties that are within a normal supplier or client/recipient
relationship on terms and condition no more or less favourable than those that it is reasonable to expect the school would have adopted
in dealing with the party at arm’s length in the same circumstances. Further, transactions with other government agencies (for example,
Government departments and Crown entities) are not disclosed as related party transactions when they are consistent with the normal
operating arrangements between government agencies and undertaken on the normal terms and conditions for such transactions.

17. Remuneration

Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel of the School include all Board members, Principal, Deputy Principals and Heads of Departments.

2023 2022
Actual Actual
$ $
Board Members 7 7
Remuneration 2,580 2,690
Leadership Team
Remuneration 1,042,755 994,138
Full-time equivalent members 7 6
Total key management personnel remuneration 1,045,335 996,828

There are 7 members of the Board excluding the Principal. The Board has held 8 full meetings of the Board in the year. The Board also
has Finance 1 member Garryy and Property 1 member Garry committees that meet monthly and quarterly respectively. As well as these
regular meetings, including preparation time, the Presiding member and other Board members have also been involved in ad hoc
meetings to consider student welfare matters including stand downs, suspensions, and other disciplinary matters.
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Principal 1
The total value of remuneration paid or payable to the Principal was in the following bands:

2023 2022
Actual Actual
Salaries and Other Short-term Employee Benefits: $000 $000
Salary and Other Payments 230-240 220-230
Benefits and Other Emoluments 4-5 4-5
Termination Benefits - -
Other Employees
The number of other employees with remuneration greater than $100,000 was in the following bands:
Remuneration 2023 2022
$000 FTE Number FTE Number
100-110 5.00 3.00
110-120 5.00 1.00
120-130 5.00 4.00
130-140 0.00 0.00
140-150 1.00 1.00
210-220 1.00
17.00 9.00

The disclosure for 'Other Employees' does not include remuneration of the Principal.

18. Compensation and Other Benefits Upon Leaving

There is no compensation or other benefits paid or payable to persons who ceased to be board members, committee members or
employees during the financial year in relation to that cessation.

19. Contingencies

There are no contingent liabilities (except as noted below) and no contingent assets as at 31 December 2023 (Contingent liabilities and
assets at 31 December 2022: nil).

The Board was notified of a claim of $x alleging a breach of contract. The Board has not recognised this matter in the financial
statements because the likelihood of the claim surfacing is not probable as there is no substance to the matter.

Holidays Act Compliance — Schools Payroil
The Ministry of Education performs payroll processing and payments on behalf of boards, through payroll service provider, Education
Payroll Limited.

The Ministry continues to review the Schools Sector Payroll to ensure compliance with the Holidays Act 2003. An initial remediation

payment has been made to some current school employees. The Ministry is continuing to perform detailed analysis to finalise
calculations and the potential impacts of specific individuals, as such, this is expected to resolve the liability for school boards.
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20. Commitments

(a) Capital Commitments

A% 31 December 2023, the Board had capital commitmentsof 542,613 {2022:51,178Z,105) as a result of entering the following

contracts:
Remaining
Capital

Contract Name Contract Amount Spend To Date{ Commitment

3 $ $
Distribution Boards 25,000 - 25,000
Overhead Cable Conduits 20,596 - 20,596
Total 214,371 171,758 42,613
21. Financial Instruments
The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities in each of the financial instrument categories are as follows:
Financial assets measured at amortised cost

2023 2023 2022
Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual
$ $ $

Cash and Cash Equivalents 52,765 108,552 144,396
Receivables 546,494 610,000 614,184
Investments - Term Deposits 1,506,931 1,630,723 2,480,064
Total financial assets measured at amortised cost 2,106,190 2,349,275 3,238,644
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Payables 964,639 606,721 778,232
Finance Leases 167,308 159,895 257,180
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1,131,947 766,616 1,035,412

22. Events After Balance Date

There were no significant events after the balance date that impact these financial statements.

23. Comparatives

There have been a number of prior period comparatives which have been reclassified to make disclosure consistent with the current

year.
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7. Report on Other Special and Contestable Funding
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